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FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

February 18, 2022

Tbd
77 Tierra Montanosa
Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Dear Tbd:

FirstService Residential California represents your Board of Directors and provides management services to your community.
We welcome the opportunity to serve you and look forward to a great relationship. FirstService has been in business since
1968. We specialize in the management of HOA and condominium associations and presently manage several associations in
your area.

The nearest branch office location:
FirstService Residential, CA - Orange County
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618-3146

If you need to contact us after hours, on weekends or in case of an emergency, please call (800) 428-5588. Our regular
business office hours are 8:00 am until 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday.

Your community manager will be your primary contact and will be touring your community regularly for the purpose of CC&R
compliance and supervising maintenance activities. Your community manager will also be working with your Board of
Directors in an effort to enrich lifestyles within the community, enhance property values and to ensure that all administrative
and financial matters are in order.

Please make your assessment checks payable to your homeowner's association and include your account number(s) on your
check. You will receive your payment coupons or payment statement in the near future. As an alternative we recommend you
use ClickPay, a convenient way to pay your Association assessment.

To better serve you, our Call Center Customer Care Staff is standing by to answer any questions you may have regarding your
account and your community. Please call our main number (800) 428-5588 for assistance. At FirstService Residential
California we have built a team of professionals you can count on and we look forward to the opportunity to serve you.

Sincerely yours,

FirstService Residential California



FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

As provided for in amended Gov. Code §12956.1, associations must place a cover page or stamp on the first page of their
CC&Rs stating, in at least 14-point boldface type, the following:

If this document contains any restriction based on race, color, religion, sex,
gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, familial status,
marital status, disability, genetic information, national origin, source of
income as defined in subdivision (p) of Section 12955, or ancestry, that
restriction violates state and federal fair housing laws and is void, and may be
removed pursuant to Section 12956.2 of the Government Code. Lawful
restrictions under state and federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as restrictions
based on familial status.

http://www.davis-stirling.com/MainIndex/Statutes/GovtCode129561/tabid/977/Default.aspx
http://www.davis-stirling.com/MainIndex/Statutes/GovtCode129561/tabid/977/Default.aspx
http://www.davis-stirling.com/MainIndex/Statutes/GovtCode129561/tabid/977/Default.aspx
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FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Billing Disclosure Form CA-B60177
Provided as required by Section 4525*

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE: This form is being provided as required by California Civil Code §4530 and is not intended to be
utilized as a total amount due on any specific resale transaction.

The seller may, in accordance with Section 4530 of the Civil Code, provide to the prospective purchaser, at no cost, current
copies of any documents specified by Section 4525 that are in the possession of the seller. A seller may request to purchase
some or all of these documents, but shall not be required to purchase ALL of the documents listed on this form.

Account Information: Provider of §4525 Items:
Association: Tierra Montanosa Print Name: Sandee Schreiber
Property Address: 77 Tierra Montanosa

Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688
Position/Title:
Date Completed:

Association Disclosure Specialist
February 18, 2022

Owner of Property: Stephen Connolly
Owner's Mailing Address: 77 Tierra Montanosa, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Document Civil Code Section Fee For Document

Not Available(N/A),
Not Applicable(N/App),
OR Directly Provided by
Seller and confirmed in

writing by Seller as a
current document (DP)

Articles of incorporation or statement
that not incorporation

Section 4525(a)(1) $48.00

CC&Rs Section 4525(a)(1) $55.00
Bylaws Section 4525(a)(1) $48.00
Operating Rules Section 4525(a)(1) $34.00
Age restrictions, if any Section 4525(a)(2) $0 (Included in CC&Rs)
Rental restrictions, if any Sections 4525(a)(9) $0 (Included in CC&Rs)
Annual budget report or summary,
including reserve study

Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(3) $48.00

Assessment and reserve funding
disclosure summary

Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Budget)

Financial statement review Sections 5305 and 4525(a)(3) $48.00
Assessment enforcement policy Sections 5310 and 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Budget)
Insurance summary Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(3) $0 (Included in Budget)
Regular assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Statement)
Special assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Statement)
Emergency assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Statement)
Other unpaid obligations of the seller Sections 5675 and 4525(a)(4) $0 (Included in Statement)
Approved changes to assessments Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(4),(8) $0 (Included in Budget)
Settlement notice regarding common
area defects

Sections 4525(a)(6), (7) and 6100 See disclosure if applicable

Preliminary list of defects Section 4525(a)(6), 6000 and
6100

See disclosure if applicable

Notice(s) of violation Sections 5855 and 4525(a)(5) $0 (Included in Statement)
Required statement of fees Section 4525 $0 (Included in Statement)
Minutes of regular meetings of the
board of directors conducted over the
previous 12 months, if requested

Section 4525(a)(10) $97.00

TOTAL FEES for these documents: $378.00 DO NOT PAY
*The information provided in this form may not include all fees that may be imposed before the close of the escrow. Additonal
fees that are not related to the requirements of Section 4525 may be charged separately. Please visit
www.fsresidential.com/california, click Order Documents & Certifications in the upper left-hand corner, and follow the
instructions to download a full list of fees and services.

https://fsresidential.com/california/home


 
As provided for in amended Gov. Code §12956.1, associations must place 
a cover page or stamp on the first page of their CC&Rs stating, in at least 
14-point boldface type, the following: 

 

If this document contains any restriction based on race, color, 
religion, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual 
orientation, familial status, marital status, disability, genetic 
information, national origin, source of income as defined in 
subdivision (p) of Section 12955, or ancestry, that restriction violates 
state and federal fair housing laws and is void, and may be removed 
pursuant to Section 12956.2 of the Government Code. Lawful 
restrictions under state and federal law on the age of occupants in 
senior housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed 
as restrictions based on familial status. 

 





FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Resale Statement of Account CA-B60177

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
This statement has been prepared on February 18, 2022

On behalf of Stephen Connolly ; owner(s) of
77 Tierra Montanosa, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Purchaser(s) is/are Tbd

Insurance Information

For all insurance information please contact:
Name: Prendiville
Phone Number: 949-487-9696

Fees due from Seller

Please send one check for the following amounts/sums due payable to: Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation, 15241
Laguna Canyon Road.

Balance due for account number TMO-TIMON-0140-02 through 02/18/2022: $0.00

The amount above is the balance for the account as of the above date. Late fees, additional assessments and other charges
will be added as they occur. FirstService Residential California offers (1) free update(s) within 30 days, any subsequent
updates are charged $106 per request. Verbal updates are not provided. The requester is responsible for obtaining an update
for the account (7) days prior to closing.

Please note: No credits will be issued by FirstService Residential California. Any adjustment to the maintenance account must
be made between the buyer and seller at closing.

Fees due from Buyer

Please send one check for the following amounts/sums due payable to: Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation, 15241
Laguna Canyon Road.

First Monthly ASSESSMENT: $360.00



FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Resale Statement of Account (continued) CA-B60177

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
This statement has been prepared on February 18, 2022

On behalf of Stephen Connolly ; owner(s) of
77 Tierra Montanosa, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Purchaser(s) is/are Tbd

Fees due for Resale Statement of Account

Please send a SEPARATE check for all of the foregoing amounts/sums due to: FirstService Residential California, 15241
Laguna Canyon Road.

The following is a statement including the disclosure fee due for the preparation of this certificate and any subsequent
documentation.

Next Day (1-2 days) Statement of Account Transfer Processing Fee $430.00
-Next Day Processing $132.00

12 Months Board Meeting Minutes $97.00
Annual Budget Package $48.00
Certificate of Insurance (Association) $48.00
Financial Audit / Review $48.00

Total Resale Statement of Account Fees Due: $803.00

Requester Information

Requested By: ASHLEY BOWMAN
Company: CORNER ESCROW
Address: 18302 Irvine Blvd Suite 350

Tustin, CA 92780
Phone #: 1749223288
Email: ABOWMAN@CORNERESCROW.COM
Escrow #: TBD

Assessment Information

The following is a statement as to the amount of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation's current regular assessments,
special assessments, and any other fees or charges currently imposed by the Association and payable by unit owner(s).

ASSESSMENT: $360.00 due Monthly on the 1st day of the payment period
Late Fee: Any assessment received 15 days after the due date will be assessed a late fee of

$10.00. At 31 days, an additional 1% of the total assessment amount will be
assessed.

Violation Information

The records of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation reflect the following alleged violation(s) of the governing
documents that remains unresolved at the time of the request:
There are none known at this time.



FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Resale Statement of Account (continued) CA-B60177

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
This statement has been prepared on February 18, 2022

On behalf of Stephen Connolly ; owner(s) of
77 Tierra Montanosa, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Purchaser(s) is/are Tbd

This statement by the Association does not relieve the Buyer of the property from the obligation to disclose alterations or
improvements to the property which violate the declaration or which may not have been approved, nor does it preclude the
Association from taking action against the purchaser of the property for violations existing at the time purchase. There may be
other items that have not been noted on this statement as it relates to landscaping or architectural improvements that may or
may not be approved by the Association at the time of receipt of this notice. California Civil Code §4525 Section (5) read in part;
"The notice shall not be deemed a waiver of the association's right to enforce the governing documents against the owner or
the prospective purchaser of the separate interest with respect to any violation."

If you have any questions regarding violations, please contact the Community Manager, Holly Chadd, at 949 448 6195.

Litigation Information
The following is not intended to suggest that there is or is not active or pending litigation within the association.

You are advised that there are often delays in the preparation of litigation disclosures by associations. They arise due to the
delay that occurs from the time a lawsuit is filed against an association until the time it is served on the association, and until a
written litigation disclosure is prepared by legal counsel representing an association, and thereafter is made available by an
association's board of directors. Once a disclosure on a case is prepared, it is to be regarded as a general notice of certain
non-confidential and non-privileged matters in connection with the disclosed litigation as of the date that such disclosure was
prepared. In addition, such a disclosure is not an exhaustive discussion of the facts of a case nor is it a prediction of the outcome
of it, or an analysis of the financial effect it might have on the association. Therefore should you desire more information about
any case, or want to know whether cases that may not as yet be the subject of a written disclosure to members and prospective
buyers have been filed against the association, all of the pleadings of a case are public records, and unless sealed by an order of
the Court, the file may be viewed and copies may be obtained from the office of the Clerk of the Court in the County where the
association is located, which is the County where a lawsuit against an association is usually filed.



FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Resale Statement of Account (continued) CA-B60177

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
This statement has been prepared on February 18, 2022

On behalf of Stephen Connolly ; owner(s) of
77 Tierra Montanosa, Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688

Purchaser(s) is/are Tbd

Disclosure to Seller and Buyer

1. FirstService Residential California is the Property Management Company for Tierra Montanosa Maintenance
Corporation.

2. Homeowner assessments are due in advance on the 1st day of each month. A statement will be sent to the buyer's
mailing address, as a courtesy, within 30 days from the notification of close of escrow ("COE") to FirstService Residential
California. Should buyer not receive a billing within 30 days of COE, Buyer is to send 1 month's dues payment to the
Association along with a copy of this form. The assessment payment due-date is established by the Association
(generally the 15th or 30th day of each month), and any payments received after the due date may be subject to a late
charge.

3. Association assessments are an assessment ON PROPERTY. California Law provides the Association with the right to lien
and foreclose ON YOUR PROPERTY due to nonpayment of assessments.

4. California Civil Code §4525 requires that the Seller of real property within an Association / Common Interest Development
provide to a Buyer certain items. The Seller may request the Homeowners Association to provide the Buyer the items and
the Association may charge a reasonable fee for this service. These fees, in addition to other fees charged by the
Association, are set forth in this Statement of Account.

5. This Statement of Account documents the referenced account as of the date of issuance. Payments and charges are
posted to accounts daily. Escrow, FirstService Residential California offers (1) free update(s) within 30 days, any
subsequent updates are charged $106 per request. Verbal updates are not provided. The requester is responsible for
obtaining an update for the account at least (2) days prior to closing.

6. Upon closing, Escrow is responsible for collecting all amounts shown on this Statement of Account; no refunds will be
issued for any Homeowners Association documents requested by Escrow.

7. Should this escrow transaction cancel or not close: a) All amounts shown on this Statement of Account remain payable
by the Seller. Entering into an escrow does not suspend the responsibility to pay the Association assessment; b) in the
event this escrow transaction cancels, Escrow is responsible for collecting and remitting the cancellation fee of $75.00. If
this fee is not collected, the charge will remain on the Seller's account until paid.

8. Sellers who pay their assessments via ACH can cancel their recurring payment in advance of the closing by going to
FSResidential.com/California, selecting "Make a Payment", and logging into their account to terminate their ACH
payment setup. The seller's ACH payment will be automatically terminated once the buyer's account is set up in our
software system.



FirstService Residential California
15241 Laguna Canyon Road
Irvine, CA 92618
(800) 428-5588

Return Form CA-B60177

ATTENTION ESCROW:
To assist in refunding any credit balance due to the seller it is imperative that you provide the seller's forwarding address
in the closing documents remitted to FirstService Residential. You can utilize the below return form or remit the
information in a closing letter from your office.

Failing to provide the seller's forwarding address may result in the seller's credit balance being forwarded to your office for
disposition to the seller.

Seller, please provide the following information:

Forwarding Address:

Escrow, please provide the following information:

The property will will not be occupied by the owners(s). Property will be occupied as of

All billings, correspondence for new owners, after COE should be mailed to Buyer's at:

List all new owners on title for said property:

The undersigned hereby acknowledge the receipt of this document which specifies the fees due for the Resale Statement
of Account, each understands its responsibilities as set forth herein, and each authorizes the Escrow Agent to pay to the
Association and FirstService Residential California, the charges set forth, respectively, as currently shown or as may be
amended before the Close of Escrow.

Seller's Signature Date Buyer's Signature Date

Name (print or type) Name (print or type)

Seller's Signature Date Buyer's Signature Date

Name (print or type) Name (print or type)

Please forward this statement signed by all parties, escrow's closing statement(s), fees and sums due to:

FirstService Residential California, LLC
15241 Laguna Canyon Road Irvine, CA 92618
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Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation 

DATE:  August 31, 2021 

TO:   The Membership – Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation  

FROM:  The Board of Directors 

RE:  2021-2022 Budget – Effective October 1, 2021 

Each year, the association’s volunteer Board of Directors performs a very careful review 
of the past year’s expenses and income to best project the amount to collect from each 
member in the upcoming fiscal year. When reviewing the budget, the Board considers 
several factors such as: recurring contract costs, inflation, utility usage and rates, 
insurance, and appropriate reserve contributions (savings) each month to pay for repair, 
restoration and/or replacement of common area components as needed.   

One of the Associations largest expenses is the Master Insurance Policy. Over 
the past several months, The Board of Directors and Management have been 
trying to obtain coverage from every provider possible, to obtain the best price 
for the Members. However, due to the association’s location next to a large fire 
zone it was extremely difficult to obtain additional bids/ quotes. The ever-difficult 
insurance conditions has necessitated (Please see the first letter in packet, from 
Prendiville Insurance) an increase to the association dues. 

As a result of this review, the Board has determined that an increase of 15.01% will be 
necessary to meet the association’s financial needs in the upcoming fiscal year. Please 
note that effective 10/01/2021, your new monthly assessment will be $360.00 per 
Month. 

This increase to the association dues is a result of the insurance renewal 
premium. The Board of Directors, Insurance broker and Management are 
continuing to shop the insurance coverage in hopes of a better rate in the market 
place. 

What Is Included in the Budget Packet? 
State law and the association’s governing documents require the Board of Directors to 
distribute the following documents annually to each member: 

• INSURANCE CONDITIONS NOTICE- PLEASE READ  
• A summary of the pro forma budget for the upcoming fiscal year 
• Assessment and Reserve Funding Disclosure Summary  
• Reserve Study Executive Summary  
• 5-Year Reserve Projection Model 
• 30-Year Reserve Cashflow Analysis 
• Delinquency Policy 



• Written Notice of Assessments, Foreclosure, and Payment Plans 
• Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Procedure 
• Internal Dispute Resolution (IDR) Procedure 
• Discipline Policy 
• Schedule of Penalties for Violation of the Association’s Documents 
• Architectural Submittal and Appeal Process 
• Insurance Summary 
• FHA Certification Disclosure 
• VA Certification Disclosure 
• Billing Disclosure Form 
• ADR/IDR Policy 

About the Reserve Study 
California law requires the association's Board of Directors to “cause to be conducted” a 
reserve study with an onsite inspection at least once every three years. Although the 
law does not require the Board to perform a reserve study in years two and three, the 
law does require an annual disclosure to be distributed to the membership in those 
years. To ensure that the association’s major components are appropriately identified, 
the Board hires a professional reserve analyst for these services.* The “Executive 
Summary” in this packet will show whether or not a site inspection was completed this 
year as determined by the Board.   

California law also requires the Board to make these disclosures about the association’s 
reserve funds: 

1) In the upcoming year, the association will fund reserves using the following 
sources: 

Type of Funding 

Regular Assessments 

Special Assessments 

Borrowing 

Use of Other Assets 

Deferral of Repairs 

Alternate Mechanisms 



2) The association has a total of $1,988,399.44 in actual accumulated reserve 
funds as of July, 31, 2021 Financial Statement. The Board anticipates that 
the amount will increase to $2,055,601.44 by the end of the current fiscal 
year. According to the reserve analyst, the total replacement cost for all 
major components is $4,262,342.00. The current reserve fund amount 
represents 48% of the projected total replacement cost. Although this 
number usually seems low, the legislature requires the Board to disclose (in 
boldface type) how much it would cost the association to rebuild all of its major 
common area components if they were replaced all at once. 

3) According to the reserve analyst, at the start of the upcoming fiscal year the 
association is anticipated to be 98.6% funded to the “ideal funding level”. That 
number represents the amount the association is anticipated to have on hand to 
repair or replace major components when they are scheduled to be repaired or 
replaced.  

4) The Board of Directors has determined to defer or not undertake repairs or 
replacement of the following major components with a remaining life of 30 years 
or less (as identified in the reserve study as having zero estimated remaining 
life):  

Item 
# 

Item Description Reason for Deciding to Defer or Not 
Undertake Repairs/Replacement 

010 Streets -asphalt overlay  Will be completed next year 2022 

020 Roof- tile repair To be completed as needed 

030 Red Curb Painting To be completed in asphalt project 

060 Pool filter/ equipment To be completed as needed 

060 Pool Furniture To be completed as needed 

100 Fire alarm panels To be completed as needed 

110 Termite Control To be completed as needed 

Insurance Information
The association carries General Liability insurance in the amount of $5,000,000.00 
which does meet the minimum amount specified in California law to ensure that owners 
are only individually liable for their proportionate share of special or regular 
assessments levied to pay any judgments against the association which exceed the 
limits of the association’s insurance.   

Additional disclosures about the association’s insurance policies can be found within 
this packet, including the name(s) of the insurer(s), the types of insurance, the policy 
limits, and the deductible amounts (if any).  



Other Disclosures 
The Board of Directors does not anticipate that any special assessment will be required 
during the upcoming fiscal year to repair, replace and/or restore any major components 
or to provide adequate reserves.  

Please contact our senior community manager, Casey Donaldson at (949) 448-6185 or via 
e-mail at Casey.Donaldson@fsresidential.com should you have any questions or if you 
would like to have a copy of the complete pro forma operating budget provided to you at the 
association’s expense or a copy of the complete reserve study plan. These documents are 
also available for review at 15241 Laguna Canyon Road, Irvine CA, 92618 by appointment. 

ANNUAL POLICY STATEMENT – Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation 

The board is required to distribute an annual policy statement that provides the 
association members with information about its policies.   

1) The name and address of the person designated to receive official 
communications to the association is the Manager on behalf of Tierra Montanosa 
Maintenance Corporation c/o FirstService Residential Management, 15241 
Laguna Canyon Road, Irvine CA, 92618.   

2) Members may submit a request to the address noted above to have notices sent 
to up to two different specified addresses. 

3) Civil Code permits the association to provide General Notices to the membership 
via newsletter, billing statement messages, or posting in a prominent location.  If 
the association chooses to post notices, they will be located at the bulletin board 
at the pool area. 

4) If you would like all notices, including general notices, to be sent to you by 
individual delivery, please notify the association’s Manager in writing. 

5) Copies of minutes for board meetings that are open to the membership are available 
upon written request throughout the year. Minutes can be released to you 30 days 
following the meeting date, and any copying and posting charges for those minutes 
are the requestor’s responsibility. If the minutes are not approved by the Board within 
the 30-day period of the request, draft minutes will be provided to you. 



 

24661 Del Prado, Suite 3, Dana Point, CA 92629 

(949) 487-9696 - Fax (949) 487-9626 – www.PrendivilleAgency.com   License #0740433 
 

 

 

August 18, 2021 

 

 

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corp. 
C/O First Service Residential California, LLC 
 
Re: 2021 Insurance Renewal 
 
Dear Members of Tierra Montanosa: 
 
My name is Patrick Prendiville and it has been my pleasure to insure Tierra Montanosa for nearly  
ten years. Unfortunately, I’m writing to you at a particularly troubling time.  
 
Each year, the insurance industry anticipates a certain volume of claim activity. There are times,  
however, when the claim activity is so high, that the that insurance companies are forced to be  
extremely cautious in taking on or remaining on property insurance policies.  
 
As you undoubtedly know, California has been experiencing a record rate of wildfires. Unfortunately,  
in addition to the personal toll, the insurance industry has been driven to a near crisis state due to  
the associated claims. Subsequently, the insurance company for Tierra Montanosa was forced to  
non-renew your account due to the proximity to a brush area. This is happening all over the RSM  
Foothill Ranch area, as well as many parts of California. 
 
The Tierra Montanosa insurance policy was shopped out to all available insurance companies and  
the overall market was less than accommodating at this time. After exhausting all possible options,  
it is clear that the rates have had a significant increase.  
 
While the policy is written for one year, your account will be submitted to the insurance marketplace  
on a quarterly basis to see if we can improve the rates. If a better alternative comes along, the Board  
of Directors will be presented with the details.  
 
We are hopeful that this problem is short-lived and we will keep working for a solution. If you would  
like to discuss this with me, please feel free to reach me at the number below.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Patrick Prendiville 

 

 



The complete pro forma operating budget is available at the business office of the association. Copies will be provided to you

upon request at the expense of the association.

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION
October 1, 2021 - September 30,  2022

								Number Of Units : 													205

Per Unit Per Month
(rounded)

Per Year
(rounded)

INCOME

	MEMBER ASSESSMENT 360.00 73,799 885,588

TOTAL INCOME 360.00 73,799 885,588

RESERVE CONTRIBUTION 127.87 26,214 314,568

----------------- ----------------- -----------------
OPERATING EXPENSES

 UTILITIES 37.10 7,606 91,272

 LAND MAINTENANCE 35.11 7,198 86,376

 SWIMMING POOL/SPA 6.63 1,360 16,320

 COMMON AREA 13.92 2,853 34,236

 ADMINISTRATION 139.36 28,568 342,816

----------------- ----------------- -----------------
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 232.12 47,585 571,020

TOTAL RESERVE CONTRIBUTION 127.87 26,214 314,568

----------------- ----------------- -----------------
TOTAL OPERATING & RESERVES 360.00 73,799 885,588

Page 1

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION DRAFT VERSION Date:8/27/2021



Current
Cost

Remaining
Life Range

Useful
Life Range

Membership Disclosure Summary

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Major Reserve Components
Assigned
Reserves

Sorted by Category

010 Streets $379,970 0-4 4-24$370,155

020 Roofs $1,587,460 0-24 1-30$302,227

030 Painting $306,964 0-8 2-10$102,010

040 Fencing & Walls $439,719 8-25 20-34$139,112

050 Lighting $152,235 5-8 30-33$116,716

060 Pool Area $301,812 0-18 4-31$243,337

070 Decks $550,203 2-3 5-21$394,805

080 Doors $344,250 3-18 5-20$40,425

090 Landscape $59,800 0-3 1-12$48,589

100 Miscellaneous $251,200 0-4 5-28$223,954

110 Termite Control & Wood Repair $91,000 0-3 1-5$59,500

$4,464,614 0-25 1-34Total

Contingency $61,225

$2,102,055

n.a. n.a.n.a.

2 Advanced Reserve Solutions, Inc.8.6.2021(1)



Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
Executive Summary

Directed Cash Flow Calculation Method

Adequacy of Reserves as of October 1, 2021:

Account Number 11596
Version Number 1

Fiscal Year 10/1/2021 to 9/30/2022
205Units

Inflation Rate 2.50
Annual Contribution Increase 2.50
Investment Rate 1.25
Taxes on Investments 30.00

Contingency 3.00

Community Profile:

This community consists of 205 condominium units contained in 41 buildings, private roadways, pool area and 
landscaped areas.

This community was constructed between 1994 and 1998.  For budgeting purposes, unless otherwise indicated, we 
have used October 1996 as the average placed-in-service date for aging most of the original components in this 
community.  We have used October 1994 as the placed-in-service date for original components at the pool area.

ARS site visits:  May 7, 2020; June 1999 and June 1998

Anticipated Reserve Balance $2,102,055.00

Fully Funded Reserve Balance $2,132,198.36

Member Contribution $32,333.33

Interest Contribution $1,167.90

08/06/2021

Client Information: Global Parameters:

Analysis Date

%
%
%
%

%
Number of

Percent Funded 98.59%

Total Contribution $33,501.23

Monthly

$157.72

$5.70

Per Unit

$163.42

Recommended Funding for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year:

15 of 15Phasing

Per MonthAnnual

$388,000

$14,015

$402,015

18.6.2021(1) Advanced Reserve Solutions, Inc.



Projections
Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Fiscal
Year

Beginning 
Balance

Member 
Contribution

Interest 
Contribution Expenditures

Ending 
Balance

Fully Funded 
Ending 
Balance

Percent 
Funded

Directed Cash Flow Calculation Method

2021-2022 $2,102,055 $388,000 $14,015 $684,333 $1,819,737 $1,823,822 100%0%
2022-2023 $1,819,737 $397,700 $16,696 $101,241 $2,132,892 $2,132,354 100%0%
2023-2024 $2,132,892 $407,643 $19,263 $126,753 $2,433,045 $2,430,869 100%0%
2024-2025 $2,433,045 $417,834 $15,101 $905,313 $1,960,667 $1,925,985 102%2%
2025-2026 $1,960,667 $428,279 $15,052 $443,341 $1,960,657 $1,906,243 103%3%
2026-2027 $1,960,657 $438,986 $18,100 $101,224 $2,316,520 $2,257,202 103%3%
2027-2028 $2,316,520 $449,961 $21,298 $98,093 $2,689,686 $2,630,494 102%2%
2028-2029 $2,689,686 $461,210 $24,448 $117,884 $3,057,460 $3,002,735 102%2%
2029-2030 $3,057,460 $472,740 $20,058 $990,617 $2,559,642 $2,477,225 103%3%
2030-2031 $2,559,642 $484,559 $22,141 $261,137 $2,805,204 $2,722,932 103%3%
2031-2032 $2,805,204 $496,673 $25,108 $174,507 $3,152,478 $3,077,729 102%2%
2032-2033 $3,152,478 $509,090 $28,641 $125,304 $3,564,904 $3,505,116 102%2%
2033-2034 $3,564,904 $521,817 $31,704 $194,895 $3,923,530 $3,881,784 101%1%
2034-2035 $3,923,530 $534,862 $30,958 $644,449 $3,844,900 $3,805,623 101%1%
2035-2036 $3,844,900 $548,234 $34,288 $192,793 $4,234,629 $4,217,073 100%0%
2036-2037 $4,234,629 $561,940 $38,556 $103,072 $4,732,053 $4,746,529 100%0%
2037-2038 $4,732,053 $575,988 $41,813 $236,107 $5,113,748 $5,162,091 99%9%
2038-2039 $5,113,748 $590,388 $46,376 $104,992 $5,645,520 $5,740,120 98%8%
2039-2040 $5,645,520 $605,148 $35,828 $1,844,249 $4,442,246 $4,510,375 98%8%
2040-2041 $4,442,246 $620,276 $39,675 $209,938 $4,892,260 $4,989,656 98%8%
2041-2042 $4,892,260 $635,783 $40,166 $611,176 $4,957,033 $5,072,016 98%8%
2042-2043 $4,957,033 $651,678 $45,128 $118,411 $5,535,428 $5,691,744 97%7%
2043-2044 $5,535,428 $667,970 $49,771 $175,802 $6,077,367 $6,281,822 97%7%
2044-2045 $6,077,367 $684,669 $43,111 $1,483,460 $5,321,687 $5,521,927 96%6%
2045-2046 $5,321,687 $701,786 $16,078 $3,812,724 $2,226,826 $2,300,145 97%7%
2046-2047 $2,226,826 $719,330 $20,109 $266,983 $2,699,283 $2,757,871 98%8%
2047-2048 $2,699,283 $737,314 $25,056 $184,604 $3,277,048 $3,331,063 98%8%
2048-2049 $3,277,048 $755,746 $30,647 $134,398 $3,929,044 $3,989,069 98%8%
2049-2050 $3,929,044 $774,640 $23,612 $1,595,833 $3,131,463 $3,138,531 100%0%
2050-2051 $3,131,463 $794,006 $26,494 $479,064 $3,472,899 $3,464,121 100%0%

NOTE:  In some cases, the projected Ending Balance may exceed the Fully Funded Ending Balance in years following high 
Expenditures.  This is a result of the provision for contingency in this analysis, which in these projections is never expended.  The 
contingency is continually adjusted according to need and any excess is redistributed among all components included.

218.6.2021(1) Advanced Reserve Solutions, Inc.
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 DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT COLLECTION POLICY 
 

Effective: OCTOBER 2021 
 

Prompt payment of assessments by all owners is critical to the financial health of the Association 
and to the enhancement of the property values of our Association.   Your Board of Directors takes 
very seriously its obligation under the CC&R’s and the California Civil Code to enforce the 
members’ obligation to pay assessments.  The Board has adopted this Collection Policy in an 
effort to discharge that obligation in a fair, consistent, and effective manner.  Therefore, pursuant 
to the CC&R’s and Civil Code, the following are the Association’s assessment collection practices 
and policies:   

 Regular monthly assessments are due and payable on the 1st day of each month.  A 
courtesy billing statement is sent each month to the billing address on record with the 
Association.  However, it is the owner of record’s responsibility to pay each assessment 
in full each month regardless of whether a statement is received.  

 All other assessments, including, but not limited to, Special Assessments, 
Reimbursement Assessments, Reconstruction Assessments, and Capital Improvement 
Assessments are due and payable on the date specified by the Board in the notice of 
assessment. 

 Regular monthly assessments and all other assessments (as defined in Paragraph 2) are 
collectively referred to herein as “Assessments”. 

 Assessments, late charges, interest and collection costs, including any attorneys’ fees, 
are the personal obligation of the owner of the property at the time the Assessment or 
other sums are levied. 

 Unpaid Assessments are delinquent 15 days after they are due. 

 A late charge of $10.00 or 10%, whichever is greater, will be charged for any Assessment 
that is not received on or before the 15th day of the month, prior to the close of business. 

 When Assessments become delinquent, the Association may, but is not required to, send 
a courtesy reminder notice to the owner of record for all outstanding charges on the 
owner’s account.  (Assessments, late fees, interest, costs of collection, including 
attorneys’ fees).  A fee of may be charged for this notice. 

 Interest on the balance due will accrue at a rate not to exceed 10% per annum; 
commencing thirty (30) days after the Assessment becomes due. 

 At fifteen (15) days past due, the association may invite owner(s) to a hearing for the 
purpose of revoking membership privileges.  Those privileges can include access to 
common areas or facilities, and/or services paid for by the association. 

 When an Assessment becomes more than forty-five (45) days past due, the Association 
will send an intent to lien/pre-lien letter to each owner, as required by the Civil Code, by 
certified mail to the owner’s address of record.  The owner will be charged a fee for the 
notice (see fee schedule pg. 3), as well as all costs to complete the transmittal of the 
letters. 

 If the owner fails to pay the amounts set forth in the intent to lien/pre-lien letter within 30 
days of receipt of that letter, a lien for the amount of any delinquent Assessments, late 
charges, interest and/or costs of collection, including attorneys’ fees, may be recorded 
against the owner’s property.  The owner will be charged a fee for the lien, as well as any 
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processing fees, recording service, and costs (see fee schedule pg. 3).  A copy of the lien 
will be sent to each owner at his/her address of record via certified mail within ten (10) 
days of recordation thereof.  After the expiration of thirty (30) days following recordation 
of the lien, the lien may be enforced in any manner permitted by law. 

o Prior to the recording of a Board authorized lien for delinquent Assessments, an 
owner that is delinquent has the right to participate in internal dispute resolution 
(“IDR”) pursuant to the “meet and confer” program in accordance with California 
Civil Code.  Prior to recording a lien, the Board of Directors will approve such 
action by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

o Upon receipt of payment in full, that includes any late fees, interest, collection 
costs and/or attorneys’ fees, a Release of Lien will be recorded.  Copies of the 
Release of Lien will be sent to all owners of record.  The owner will be charged a 
fee for the release, as well as any processing fees, recording service, and costs 
(see fee schedule pg. 3).  All county recording fees are charged as applicable and 
as counties may charge from time to time.  

 If an owner is delinquent for thirty (30) additional days after the Notice of Delinquent 
Assessment (Lien) has been recorded, the Assessment collection matter will be referred 
to the Association’s attorney or collection agent, and the lien may be enforced by judicial 
or non-judicial foreclosure sale, or by money judgment at the Association’s option. An 
actual foreclosure sale of an owner’s property will not be conducted unless or until either; 
(a) the delinquent assessment amount totals One Thousand, Eight Hundred Dollars 
($1,800) or more, excluding accelerated assessments and specified late charges and/or 
fees; or (b) the assessments are delinquent for more than twelve (12) months.  [You 
could lose ownership of your property if a foreclosure action is completed.  You will be 
responsible for significant additional fees and costs, including attorneys’ fees, if a 
foreclosure action is commenced against your property.]  The decision to foreclose on a 
lien must be made by a majority of the Board of Directors in an Executive Session 
meeting and the Board of Directors must record their votes in the Minutes of the next 
open session Meeting of the Board.  The Board must maintain the confidentiality of the 
delinquent owner(s) by identifying the matter in the Minutes by only the parcel number of 
the owner’s property.  Prior to initiating any foreclosure sale on a recorded lien, the 
Association shall offer delinquent owners the option of participating in IDR or Alternative 
Dispute Resolution (“ADR”). 

 Nothing herein limits or otherwise affects the Association’s right to proceed in any other 
lawful manner to collect any delinquent sums owed to the Association. 

 The Association will charge a processing fee to the owner for a returned check. 

 Any owner who is unable to pay Assessments will be entitled to submit a written request 
for a payment plan to be considered by the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors is 
not required to approve a payment plan.  If a payment plan is approved, the Board of 
Directors may establish the terms of the payment plan.  A payment plan request or 
approved payment plan will not impede the Board’s ability to vote for and record a lien. 

 The mailing address for overnight payment of assessments is: 

 

FirstService Residential California, LLC 
15241 Laguna Canyon Rd 
Irvine, CA  92618 
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 Fee Schedule 

 

Service Fee(s) 

Intent to Lien Letter with Title Check $250.00  

Notice of Delinquent Assessment Lien $275.00  

Intent to Foreclose Letter $75.00  

Release of Lien $165.00  

Foreclosure Package $350.00  

Title Report $65.00  

Notary Service $15.00  

Recording Service $50.00  

State SB2 Recording Fee $75.00  

Additional Letter Fee $25.00  

 

NOTICE ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE 

This notice outlines some of the rights and responsibilities of owners of property in common 
interest developments and the associations that manage them. Please refer to the sections of 
the Civil Code indicated for further information. A portion of the information in this notice applies 
only to liens recorded on or after January 1, 2003. You may wish to consult a lawyer if you 
dispute an assessment. 

ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE 

Assessments become delinquent 15 days after they are due, unless the governing documents 
provide for a longer time. The failure to pay association assessments may result in the loss of 
an owner’s property through foreclosure. Foreclosure may occur either as a result of a court 
action, known as judicial foreclosure, or without court action, often referred to as nonjudicial 
foreclosure. For liens recorded on and after January 1, 2006, an association may not use 
judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure to enforce that lien if the amount of the delinquent 
assessments or dues, exclusive of any accelerated assessments, late charges, fees, attorney’s 
fees, interest, and costs of collection, is less than one thousand eight hundred dollars ($1,800). 
For delinquent assessments or dues in excess of one thousand eight hundred dollars ($1,800) 
or more than 12 months delinquent, an association may use judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure 
subject to the conditions set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 5700) of Chapter 8 of 
Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. When using judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, the 
association records a lien on the owner’s property. The owner’s property may be sold to satisfy 
the lien if the amounts secured by the lien are not paid. (Sections 5700 through 5720 of the Civil 
Code, inclusive) 

In a judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, the association may recover assessments, reasonable 
costs of collection, reasonable attorney’s fees, late charges, and interest. The association may 
not use nonjudicial foreclosure to collect fines or penalties, except for costs to repair common 
area damaged by a member or a member’s guests, if the governing documents provide for this. 
(Section 5725 of the Civil Code) 

The association must comply with the requirements of Article 2 (commencing with Section 5650) 
of Chapter 8 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code when collecting delinquent assessments. If 
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the association fails to follow these requirements, it may not record a lien on the owner’s 
property until it has satisfied those requirements. Any additional costs that result from satisfying 
the requirements are the responsibility of the association. (Section 5675 of the Civil Code) 

At least 30 days prior to recording a lien on an owner’s separate interest, the association must 
provide the owner of record with certain documents by certified mail, including a description of 
its collection and lien enforcement procedures and the method of calculating the amount. It must 
also provide an itemized statement of the charges owed by the owner. An owner has a right to 
review the association’s records to verify the debt. (Section 5660 of the Civil Code) 

If a lien is recorded against an owner’s property in error, the person who recorded the lien is 
required to record a lien release within 21 days, and to provide an owner certain documents in 
this regard. (Section 5685 of the Civil Code) 

The collection practices of the association may be governed by state and federal laws regarding 
fair debt collection. Penalties can be imposed for debt collection practices that violate these 
laws. 

 

PAYMENTS 

When an owner makes a payment, the owner may request a receipt, and the association is 
required to provide it. On the receipt, the association must indicate the date of payment and the 
person who received it. The association must inform owners of a mailing address for overnight 
payments. (Section 5655 of the Civil Code) 

An owner may, but is not obligated to, pay under protest any disputed charge or sum levied by 
the association, including, but not limited to, an assessment, fine, penalty, late fee, collection 
cost, or monetary penalty imposed as a disciplinary measure, and by so doing, specifically 
reserve the right to contest the disputed charge or sum in court or otherwise. 

An owner may dispute an assessment debt by submitting a written request for dispute resolution 
to the association as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with Section 5900) of Chapter 10 of Part 
5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. In addition, an association may not initiate a foreclosure without 
participating in alternative dispute resolution with a neutral third party as set forth in Article 3 
(commencing with Section 5925) of Chapter 10 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, if so 
requested by the owner. Binding arbitration shall not be available if the association intends to 
initiate a judicial foreclosure. 

An owner is not liable for charges, interest, and costs of collection, if it is established that the 
assessment was paid properly on time. (Section 5685 of the Civil Code) 

 

 

MEETINGS AND PAYMENT PLANS 

An owner of a separate interest that is not a time-share interest may request the association to 
consider a payment plan to satisfy a delinquent assessment. The association must inform 
owners of the standards for payment plans, if any exists. (Section 5665 of the Civil Code) 

The board must meet with an owner who makes a proper written request for a meeting to 
discuss a payment plan when the owner has received a notice of a delinquent assessment. 
These payment plans must conform to the payment plan standards of the association, if they 
exist. (Section 5665 of the Civil Code). 
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ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS 

In the event that the Association files any action against an Owner for unpaid Assessments on 
Owner’s Unit, and said Unit is or becomes rented or leased at any time during the pendency of 
the action, the Association shall have the right, upon ex parte notice and application, to request 
that the Court order Owner to assign all rents due from the renter/lessor of said Unit to the 
Association until such time as all Assessment delinquencies are cured. 
 

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

5925.  As used in this article:  (a) "Alternative dispute resolution" means mediation, arbitration, 
conciliation, or other non-judicial procedure that involves a neutral party in the decision making 
process.  The form of alternative dispute resolution chosen pursuant to this article may be 
binding or nonbinding, with the voluntary consent of the parties.  
(b) "Enforcement action" means a civil action or proceeding, other than a cross-complaint, for 
any of the following purposes:  
(1) Enforcement of this title. 
(2) Enforcement of the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law (Part 3 commencing with 
Section 7110) of Division 2 of Title 1 of the Corporations Code). 
(3) Enforcement of the governing documents of a common interest development. 

5930.  (a) An association or an owner or a member of a common interest development may not 
file an enforcement action in the superior court unless the parties have endeavored to submit 
their dispute to alternative dispute resolution pursuant to this article. 
(b) This section applies only to an enforcement action that is solely for declaratory, injunctive, or 
writ relief, or for that relief in conjunction with a claim for monetary damages not in excess of the 
jurisdictional limits stated in the Code of Civil.  
(c) This section does not apply to a small claims action. 
(d) Except as otherwise provided by law, this section does not apply to an assessment dispute. 

5935.  (a) Any party to a dispute may initiate the process required by serving on all other parties 
to the dispute a Request for Resolution.  The Request for Resolution shall include all of the 
following:  
(1) A brief description of the dispute between the parties. 
(2) A request for alternative dispute resolution. 
(3) A notice that the party receiving the Request for Resolution is required to respond within 30 
days of receipt or the request will be deemed rejected. 
(4) If the party on whom the request is served is the owner of a separate interest, a copy of this 
article. 
(b) Service of the Request for Resolution shall be by personal delivery, first-class mail, express 
mail, facsimile transmission, or other means reasonably calculated to provide the party on whom 
the request is served actual notice of the request. 
(c) A party on whom a Request for Resolution is served has 30 days following service to accept 
or reject the request.  If a party does not accept the request within that period, the request is 
deemed rejected by the party. 

5940. (a) If the party on whom a Request for Resolution is served accepts the request, the 
parties shall complete the alternative dispute resolution within 90 days after the party initiating 
the request receives the acceptance, unless this period is extended by written stipulation signed 
by both parties.   
(b) Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 1115) of Division 9 of the Evidence Code applies to 
any form of alternative dispute resolution initiated by a Request for Resolution under this article, 
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other than arbitration. 
(c) The costs of the alternative dispute resolution shall be borne by the parties. 

5945.  If a Request for Resolution is served before the end of the applicable time limitation for 
commencing an enforcement action, the time limitation is tolled during the following periods:  
(a) The period provided in Section 5935 for response to a Request for Resolution. 
(b) If the Request for Resolution is accepted, the period provided by Section 5940 for 
completion of alternative dispute resolution, including any extension of time stipulated to by the 
parties pursuant to Section 5940. 

5950.  (a) At the time of commencement of an enforcement action, the party commencing the 
action shall file with the initial pleading a certificate stating that one or more of the following 
conditions is satisfied: 
(1) Alternative dispute resolution has been completed in compliance with this article. 
(2) One of the other parties to the dispute did not accept the terms offered for alternative dispute 
resolution. 
(3) Preliminary or temporary injunctive relief is necessary. 
(b) Failure to file a certificate pursuant to subdivision (a) is grounds for a demurrer or a motion to 
strike unless the court finds that dismissal of the action for failure to comply with this article 
would result in substantial prejudice to one of the parties. 

5955. (a) After an enforcement action is commenced, on written stipulation of the parties, the 
matter may be referred to alternative dispute resolution.  The referred action is stayed.  During 
the stay, the action is not subject to the rules implementing subdivision (c) of Section 68603 of 
the Government Code. 
(b) The costs of the alternative dispute resolution shall be borne by the parties. 

5960.  In an enforcement action in which fees and costs may be awarded pursuant to 
subdivision (c) of the court, in determining the amount of the award, may consider whether a 
party's refusal to participate in alternative dispute resolution before commencement of the action 
was reasonable. 

5965.  (a) An association shall annually provide its members a summary of the provisions of this 
article that specifically references this article.  The summary shall include the following 
language: 

   "Failure of a member of the association to comply with the alternative dispute resolution 
requirements of the Civil Code may result in the loss of your right to sue the association or 
another member of the association regarding enforcement of the governing documents or the 
applicable law." 

(b) The summary shall be provided either at the time the pro forma budget is distributed or in the 
manner prescribed in Section 5016 of the Corporations Code.  The summary shall include a 
description of the association's internal dispute resolution process. 
 

INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

5915.  Statutory Dispute Resolution Procedure 
(a) This section applies in an association that does not otherwise provide a fair,   reasonable, 
and expeditious dispute resolution procedure.  The procedure provided in this section is fair, 
reasonable, and expeditious, within the meaning of this article. 
(b) Either party to a dispute within the scope of this article may invoke the following procedure: 
(1) The party may request the other party to meet and confer in an effort to resolve the dispute.  
The request shall be in writing.  
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(2) A member of an association may refuse a request to meet and confer.  The association may 
not refuse a request to meet and confer. 
(3) The association's board of directors shall designate a member of the board to meet and 
confer. 
(4) The parties shall meet promptly at a mutually convenient time and place, explain their 
positions to each other, and confer in good faith in an effort to resolve the dispute. The parties 
may be assisted by an attorney or another person at their own cost when conferring. 
(5) A resolution of the dispute agreed to by the parties shall be memorialized in writing and 
signed by the parties, including the board designee on behalf of the association. 
(c) A written agreement reached under this section binds the parties and is judicially enforceable 
if it is signed by both parties and both of the following conditions are satisfied: 
(1) The agreement is not in conflict with law or the governing documents of the common interest 
development or association. 
(2) The agreement is either consistent with the authority granted by the board of directors to its 
designee or the agreement is ratified by the board of directors. 
(d) A member of the association may not be charged a fee to participate in the process. 
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FirstService Residential California, LLC

A) Property #CIBA-000001-02-A55361, 08/08/2021 - 08/08/2022: $64,813,006 Limit, $25,000
Deductible/$100,000 Wildfire Deductible
FirstService Residential California, LLC is Named as Additional Insured as Their Interests May
Appear, as Respects: Auto Liability, CGL, D&O Liability, Fidelity Bond, and Umbrella Liability.
Walls-In Coverage is Included. 205 Units, 41 Buildings. 100% Replacement Cost Valuation. Wind &
Hail Coverage is Included. Boiler & Machinery Coverage is Included.
Building Ordinance Coverage:
A(Undamaged)=Included, B(Demolition)=20%, C(Increased Construction Costs)=20%
*CANCELLATION: 30 DAY NOTICE, EXCEPT 10 DAY NOTICE FOR NON-PAYMENT OF PREMIUM.

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
c/o FirstService Residential
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Deductible $25,000
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TIERRA MONTANOSA  

MAINTENANCE CORPORATION

Federal Housing Administration Certification Disclosure 

Certification by the Federal Housing Administration may provide benefits to 

members of an association, including an improvement in an owner’s ability 

to refinance a mortgage or obtain secondary financing and an increase in 

the pool of potential buyers of the separate interest. This common interest 

development [ is / is not ] a condominium project. The association of this 

common interest development [ is / is not ] certified by the Federal Housing 

Administration. 

This information regarding the association’s Federal Housing 

Administration certification status is as of August 10, 2021.  

For current information, please visit the Federal Housing Administration 
website at: https://entp.hud.gov/idapp/html/condlook.cfm
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TIERRA MONTANOSA  

MAINTENANCE CORPORATION

Veterans Affairs Certification Disclosure 

Certification by the federal Department of Veterans Affairs may provide 

benefits to members of an association, including an improvement in an 

owner’s ability to refinance a mortgage or obtain secondary financing and 

an increase in the pool of potential buyers of the separate interest. This 

common interest development [ is / is not ] a condominium project. The 

association of this common interest development [ is / is not ] certified by 

the federal Department of Veterans Affairs. 

This information regarding the association’s Veterans Affairs certification 

status is as of August 10, 2021. 

For current information, please visit the U.S. Department of Veterans 

Affairs website at: 

https://vip.vba.va.gov/portal/VBAH/VBAHome/condopudsearch
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Billing Disclosure Form - Provided as required by Section 4525*                                                                            Effective 1/1/2021 

FirstService Residential California 
15421 Laguna Canyon Road 
Irvine, CA 92618 
(800) 428-5588 
 

 

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE: This form is being provided as required by California Civil Code §4530 and is not intended to be utilized as 
a total amount due on any specific resale transaction. 

The seller may, in accordance with Section 4530 of the Civil Code, provide to the prospective purchaser, at no cost, current 
copies of any documents specified by Section 4525 that are in the possession of the seller. A seller may request to purchase 
some or all of these documents, but shall not be required to purchase all of the documents listed on this form.  

Account Information:    Provider of §4525 Items:  
Association:     Print Name:        
Property Address:    Position/Title:   

   Date Completed:   
Owner of Property:   
Owner’s Mailing Address:   

  

Fee For Document                           

Not Available (N/A), Not 
Applicable N/App), OR 
Directly Provided by 
Seller and confirmed in 
writing by Seller as a 
current document (DP) 

Articles of incorporation or statement that 
not incorporation 

Section 4525(a)(1) $42.00   

CC&Rs Section 4525(a)(1) $48.00  
 

Bylaws Section 4525 (a)(1) $42.00    
Operating Rules Section 4525 (a)(1) $30.00  

 

Age restrictions, if any Section 4525 (a)(2) $0.00 (Included in 
CC&Rs) 

  

Rental restrictions, if any Section 4525 (a)(9) $0.00 (Included in 
CC&Rs) 

 

Annual budget report or summary, 
including reserve study 

Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(3) $42.00  
 

Assessment and reserve funding 
disclosure summary 

Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(4) $0.00  (Included in 
Budget) 

  

Financial statement review  Sections 5305 and 4525(a)(3) $38.00  
 

Assessment enforcement policy Sections 5310 and 4525(a)(4) $0.00  (Included in 
Budget) 

  

Insurance summary Sections 5300 and 4525(a)(3) $0.00  (Included in 
Budget) 

 

Regular assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

  

Special assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

 

Emergency assessment Section 4525(a)(4) $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

  

Other unpaid obligations of the seller Sections 5675 and 4525(a)(4) $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

 

Approved changes to assessments Sections 5300 & 4525(a)(4), (8) $0.00 (Included in Budget)   
Settlement notice regarding common 
area defects 

Sections 4525(a)(6), (7) & 6100 See disclosure if 
applicable 

 

Preliminary list of defects Section 4525(a)(6), 6000 and 
6100 

See disclosure if 
applicable 

  

Notice(s) of violation Sections 5855 and 4525(a)(5) $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

 

Required statement of fees Section 4525 $0.00 (Included in 
Statement) 

  



 

  
 
 
Billing Disclosure Form - Provided as required by Section 4525*                                                                            Effective 1/1/2021 

FirstService Residential California 
15421 Laguna Canyon Road 
Irvine, CA 92618 
(800) 428-5588 
 

 

Minutes of regular meetings of the board 
of directors conducted over the previous 
12 months, if requested 

Section 4525(a)(10) $85.00  
 

TOTAL FEES for these documents: $327.00   DO NOT PAY 
*The Information provided in this form may not include all fees that may be imposed before the close of escrow. Additional 
fees that are not related to the requirements of Section 4525 may be charged separately. The documents listed on this form are 
the property of the Association, and not FirstService Residential. Please visit www.fsresidential.com/california, click Order Documents & 
Certifications in the upper left-hand corner, and follow the instructions to download a full list of fees and services.  



 

 

 

Dispute Resolution Procedures:  Alternative Dispute Resolution and Internal 
Dispute Resolution 

 
ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

5925.  As used in this article: (a) "Alternative dispute resolution" means mediation, arbitration, conciliation, or 
other non-judicial procedure that involves a neutral party in the decision-making process.  The form of alternative 
dispute resolution chosen pursuant to this article may be binding or nonbinding, with the voluntary consent of the 
parties.  
(b) "Enforcement action" means a civil action or proceeding, other than a cross-complaint, for any of the following 
purposes:  
   (1) Enforcement of this title. 
   (2) Enforcement of the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law (Part 3 commencing with Section 7110) of      
Division 2 of Title 1 of the Corporations Code). 
   (3) Enforcement of the governing documents of a common interest development. 

5930.  (a) An association or an owner or a member of a common interest development may not file an enforcement 
action in the superior court unless the parties have endeavored to submit their dispute to alternative dispute 
resolution pursuant to this article. 
(b) This section applies only to an enforcement action that is solely for declaratory, injunctive, or writ relief, or for 
that relief in conjunction with a claim for monetary damages not in excess of the jurisdictional limits stated in the 
Code of Civil.  
(c) This section does not apply to a small claims action. 
(d) Except as otherwise provided by law, this section does not apply to an assessment dispute. 

5935. (a) Any party to a dispute may initiate the process required by serving on all other parties to the dispute a 
Request for Resolution.  The Request for Resolution shall include all of the following:  
   (1) A brief description of the dispute between the parties. 
   (2) A request for alternative dispute resolution. 
   (3) A notice that the party receiving the Request for Resolution is required to respond within 30 days of receipt or 
the request will be deemed rejected. 
   (4) If the party on whom the request is served is the owner of a separate interest, a copy of this article. 
(b) Service of the Request for Resolution shall be by personal delivery, first-class mail, express mail, facsimile 
transmission, or other means reasonably calculated to provide the party on whom the request is served actual notice 
of the request. 
(c) A party on whom a Request for Resolution is served has 30 days following service to accept or reject the 
request.  If a party does not accept the request within that period, the request is deemed rejected by the party. 

5940. (a) If the party on whom a Request for Resolution is served accepts the request, the parties shall complete the 
alternative dispute resolution within 90 days after the party initiating the request receives the acceptance, unless this 
period is extended by written stipulation signed by both parties.   
(b) Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 1115) of Division 9 of the Evidence Code applies to any form of 
alternative dispute resolution initiated by a Request for Resolution under this article, other than arbitration. 
(c) The costs of the alternative dispute resolution shall be borne by the parties. 

5945.  If a Request for Resolution is served before the end of the applicable time limitation for commencing an 
enforcement action, the time limitation is tolled during the following periods:  
(a) The period provided in Section 5935 for response to a Request for Resolution. 
(b) If the Request for Resolution is accepted, the period provided by Section 5940 for completion of alternative 
dispute resolution, including any extension of time stipulated to by the parties pursuant to Section 5940. 

5950.  (a) At the time of commencement of an enforcement action, the party commencing the action shall file with 
the initial pleading a certificate stating that one or more of the following conditions is satisfied: 
   (1) Alternative dispute resolution has been completed in compliance with this article. 
   (2) One of the other parties to the dispute did not accept the terms offered for alternative dispute resolution. 
   (3) Preliminary or temporary injunctive relief is necessary. 
(b) Failure to file a certificate pursuant to subdivision (a) is grounds for a demurrer or a motion to strike unless the 



 

 

 

court finds that dismissal of the action for failure to comply with this article would result in substantial prejudice to 
one of the parties. 

5955. (a) After an enforcement action is commenced, on written stipulation of the parties, the matter may be 
referred to alternative dispute resolution.  The referred action is stayed.  During the stay, the action is not subject to 
the rules implementing subdivision (c) of Section 68603 of the Government Code. 
(b) The costs of the alternative dispute resolution shall be borne by the parties. 

5960.  In an enforcement action in which fees and costs may be awarded pursuant to subdivision (c) of the court, in 
determining the amount of the award, may consider whether a party's refusal to participate in alternative dispute 
resolution before commencement of the action was reasonable. 

5965. (a) An association shall annually provide its members a summary of the provisions of this article that 
specifically references this article.  The summary shall include the following language: 

   "Failure of a member of the association to comply with the alternative dispute resolution requirements of the Civil 
Code may result in the loss of your right to sue the association or another member of the association regarding 
enforcement of the governing documents or the applicable law." 

(b) The summary shall be provided either at the time the pro forma budget is distributed or in the manner prescribed 
in Section 5016 of the Corporations Code.  The summary shall include a description of the association's internal 
dispute resolution process. 

 
INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

5915.  Statutory Dispute Resolution Procedure 
(a) This section applies in an association that does not otherwise provide a fair, reasonable, and expeditious dispute 
resolution procedure.  The procedure provided in this section is fair, reasonable, and expeditious, within the 
meaning of this article. 
(b) Either party to a dispute within the scope of this article may invoke the following procedure: 
   (1) The party may request the other party to meet and confer in an effort to resolve the dispute.  The request shall 
be in writing.  
   (2) A member of an association may refuse a request to meet and confer.  The association may not refuse a 
request to meet and confer. 
   (3) The association's board of directors shall designate a member of the board to meet and confer. 
   (4) The parties shall meet promptly at a mutually convenient time and place, explain their positions to each other, 
and confer in good faith in an effort to resolve the dispute. The parties may be assisted by an attorney or another 
person at their own cost when conferring. 
   (5) A resolution of the dispute agreed to by the parties shall be memorialized in writing and signed by the parties, 
including the board designee on behalf of the association. 
(c) A written agreement reached under this section binds the parties and is judicially enforceable if it is signed by 
both parties and both of the following conditions are satisfied: 
   (1) The agreement is not in conflict with law or the governing documents of the common interest development or 
association. 
   (2) The agreement is either consistent with the authority granted by the board of directors to its designee or the 
agreement is ratified by the board of directors. 
(d) A member of the association may not be charged a fee to participate in the process. 
 





Tierra Montanosa
Maintenance Corporation
Board Minutes





I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. WORK ORDER REPORT

B. MANAGEMENT REPORT

C. JANUARY 2022 NEWSLETTER

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
December 21, 2021 7:15 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #872 0107 9776

Passcode # 367825

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Senior Community Manager, FirstService Residential
Nikole McIntosh, Community Manager, FirstService Residential
Kara Beers, CMCA, AMS, PCAM, Regional Director, FirstService Residential

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:44pm.

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

The following reports were reviewed and filed:

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 1
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VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - NOVEMBER 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - OCTOBER 2021

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - NOVEMBER 2021

D. LIEN APPROVAL

E. 2021 DRAFT AUDIT

F. 136 TIERRA MONTANOSA SKYLIGHT REPLACEMENT

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. TREE REMOVAL PROPOSAL

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the  November 11, 2021 Open session minutes as presented.

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending financials being produced.  

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending financials being produced. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the lien to be placed on the following:

#0126-01 $692.04

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve draft audit as presented.

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

Resolved

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 2
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B. ASPHALT MAINTENANCE PROPOSAL

C. UTILITY DOORS SIGNAGE

D. MONUMENT LANDSCAPE PROPOSAL

E. UTILITY BOX PAINTING PROPOSAL

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

This item has been tabled pending further review and discussion.

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the updated asphalt maintenance proposal from JB Bostick.

Motion: ALLEN MIRANDA
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending further review and bids.

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal from Park West for the landscape of the monument
signage.

Motion: JEFF BRADLEY
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending further review and bids.

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held January 18, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 8:34pm.

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 3
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. WORK ORDER REPORT

B. MANAGEMENT REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - NOVEMBER 2021

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
November 11, 2021 7:15 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #812 3869 1158

Passcode # 883788

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Senior Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:49PM. 

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Open Session Minutes dated November 11, 2021 be approved as presented.

Motion: CORY GONSOWSKI
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

www.fsresidential.com 1
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B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - OCTOBER 2021

C. RATIFICATION OF MONUMENT CHANGE ORDER

D. LIEN APPROVAL

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. UTILITY DOORS SIGNAGE

B. MONUMENT LANDSCAPE PROPOSAL

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the September 30, 2021 Financial Statement as presented. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending further review. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the lien to be placed on the following: 

Account #0050-03  $696.13

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending further review and bids. 

Resolved

This item has been tabled pending further review and bids. 

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held December 21, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 8:18PM.

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 2
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APPROVED DATE
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. WORK ORDER REPORT

B. MANAGEMENT REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
September 21, 2021 7:15 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #846 7081 1403

Passcode # 526840

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA,CCAM, Senior Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:18PM. 

There was four homeowners in attendance to discuss numerous community issues. 

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the consent calendar as presented items A through B. 

Motion: CORY GONSOWSKI
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

www.fsresidential.com 1
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A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - AUGUST 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - AUGUST 2021

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. UTILITY DOORS REPAIRS AND SIGNAGE

B. WINTER TREE TRIMMING/ PINE REMOVALS

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by Alpha Regional to make repairs to the
utility doors community wide. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve both proposals by Park West Landscape to trim the palm trees at the
pool area and to remove 3 dead pine trees at the trumpeta entrance. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held October 19th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 7:53PM. 

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. WORK ORDER REPORT

B. MANAGEMENT REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
September 21, 2021 7:15 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #846 7081 1403

Passcode # 526840

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA,CCAM, Senior Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:18PM. 

There was four homeowners in attendance to discuss numerous community issues. 

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the consent calendar as presented items A through B. 

Motion: CORY GONSOWSKI
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

www.fsresidential.com 1
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A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - AUGUST 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - AUGUST 2021

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. UTILITY DOORS REPAIRS AND SIGNAGE

B. WINTER TREE TRIMMING/ PINE REMOVALS

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by Alpha Regional to make repairs to the
utility doors community wide. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve both proposals by Park West Landscape to trim the palm trees at the
pool area and to remove 3 dead pine trees at the trumpeta entrance. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held October 19th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 7:53PM. 

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. WORK ORDER REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JULY 2021

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
August 17, 2021 8:00 PM
Held Via Teleconference

Call in #253 215 8782, ID #827 5398 5390
Passcode #744174

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Senior Community Manager,  FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:52PM. 

The work order report was reviewed and filed. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the consent calendar as presented items A through E.

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 1
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B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - MAY 2021

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - JUNE 2021

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - JULY 2021

E. LIEN APPROVAL

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. UTILITY DOORS REPAIRS AND SIGNAGE

B. 2021 RESERVE STUDY

C. 2021-2022 BUDGET

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the liens as presented by Management. 

Resolved

This item was tabled for further review by the Board. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the reserve study as presented. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the budget as presented by Management for a increase in dues to
account for the insurance line item that was increased by the carriers. 

Motion: ALLEN MIRANDA
Second: NANCY SILBERBERG

The open session meeting was adjourned at 8:24PM. 

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

B. WORK ORDER REPORT

C. MONUMENT RENDERINGS -PARK WEST

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JUNE 2021

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
July 20, 2021 7:30 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #891 0152 0284

Passcode #876052

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Senior Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:54PM. 

The follow reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Open Session Minutes dated June 15th, 2021 be approved as presented.

Motion: CORY GONSOWSKI

www.fsresidential.com 1
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B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - MAY 2021

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - JUNE 2021

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. 104 TIERRA MONTANOSA WALL REPAIR

B. 97 TIERRA PLANO FRONT DOOR

C. 23 TIERRA SEGURO ROOF REPAIR

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

This item was tabled. 

Resolved

This item was tabled. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by Alpha Regional to repair the damaged
wall at 104 Tierra Montanosa in the amount of $1,995.00.

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by Alpha Regional to repaint the front door
at 97 Tierra Plano in the amount of $875.00. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by Roofing Standards to repair the roof at
23 Tierra Seguro in the amount of $1,950.00. 

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held August 17th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 8:41PM. 

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 2
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APPROVED DATE
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

B. WORK ORDER REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
June 15, 2021 7:00 PM
Held Via Teleconference

Call in #253 215 8782, ID #857 4572 2053
Passcode #160988

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, Senior Community Manager, CMCA, CCAM, FirstService Residential 

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:10PM. 

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Homeowners from the following addresses were in attendance to discuss tree issues.

134 Tierra Montanosa

132 Tierra Montanosa

4 Tierra Seguro 

www.fsresidential.com 1



A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MAY 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - APRIL 2021

VII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

VIII. ADJOURN

Resolved

The consent calendar was approved as presented items A through B.

Motion: ALLEN MIRANDA
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

The open session meeting was adjourned at 7:38PM. 

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

B. WORK ORDER REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
May 18, 2021 7:30 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #819 5086 6483

Passcode #117243

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The meeting was called to order at 7:34PM

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve management to approve the paper reserve update with ARS.

Motion: JEFF BRADLEY
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

There were two homeowners in attendance for open session meeting. 

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 1



VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MARCH 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - FEBRUARY 2021

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - MARCH 2021

D. SPA FILTER REPLACEMENT

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. TIERRA MONTANOSA MONUMENT PROJECT

B. PARKWEST LANDSCAPE PROPOSALS

C. ASPHALT PROJECT CURB PAINTING

Resolved

The consent calendar was approved as presented. 

Motion: JEFF BRADLEY
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

History

The Board has approved the minutes as presented. 

Motion: JEFF BRADLEY
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal from Tri-Star construction to repairs the monument walls
including the wall end caps and electric conduit. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: JEFF BRADLEY

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal to remove the pear trees at 23 Tierra Seguro and to
remove the remaining fuel modification area at 3 Tierra Seguro. I addition it is approved to remove the
landscape at the monuments for proposal 85664. $11,285.00

Motion: JEFF BRADLEY
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 2



VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal from JB Bostick to sand blast the curbs and repaint them
red. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held June 15th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:20PM. 

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 3





NO MEETING HELD FOR APRIL 2021 





I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

B. WORK ORDER REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - FEBRUARY 2021

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
March 16, 2021 7:15 PM
Held Via Teleconference

Call in #253 215 8782, ID #822 5516 9271
Passcode #909221

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY - Treasurer 
NANCY SILBERBERG - President 
CORY GONSOWSKI - Vice President 
ALLEN MIRANDA - Member at Large 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Community Manager, FirstService Residential  

The open session meeting was called to order at 7:34PM

The following reports were reviewed and filed: 

Resolved

That the Board of Director's approved the open session minutes dated February 16th, 2021 as presented. 

Motion: ALLEN MIRANDA
Second: CORY GONSOWSKI

www.fsresidential.com 1



B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - FEBRUARY 2021

C. LIEN APPROVAL

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. TIERRA MONTANOSA MONUMENT PROJECT

B. 97 TIERRA PLANO FRONT DOOR PAINTING

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Resolved

The February 2021 financial statement was tabled to next months meeting. 

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approved the liens as presented. 

Motion: NANCY SILBERBERG
Second: ALLEN MIRANDA

Resolved

This item has been tabled to next months meeting. 

Resolved

This item has been tabled to next month's meeting. 

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held April 20th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

The open session meeting was adjourned at 8:08PM

APPROVED DATE

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously

Resolved
The motion passed unanimously
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I. CALL TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/ANNOUNCEMENT

III. COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS

IV. REPORTS

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

B. WORK ORDER REPORT

V. HOMEOWNER FORUM

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE
CORPORATION

Tierra Montanosa Open Session Meeting
February 16, 2021 7:15 PM

Held Via Teleconference
Call in #253 215 8782, ID #883 4091 2726

Passcode #922030

MINUTES

Directors Present Directors Absent
JEFF BRADLEY 
NANCY SILBERBERG 
CORY GONSOWSKI 
ALLEN MIRANDA 

None

Additional Attendees
Casey Donaldson, CMCA, CCAM, Community Manager, FirstService Residential 

The Open Session meeting for the Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation Board of Directors was
called to order at 7:18 p.m.

That the following reports be reviewed and filed.

There was 3 homeowners in attendance to discuss sprinkler repair project and listening to the meeting. 

Resolved

The Board of Directors resolved to approve items A through B.

Motion: SILBERBERG

www.fsresidential.com 1
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A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JANUARY 2021

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - JANUARY 2021

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. 5 YEAR FIRE SPRINKLER REPAIRS

B. TIERRA MONTANOSA ASPHALT PROJECT

VIII. NEXT BOARD MEETING

IX. ADJOURN

Second: GONSOWSKI

Resolved

The Board of Directors approve the proposal from AD Fire for the fire sprinkler repairs at Tierra Montanosa
in the amount of $15,575.00. 

Motion: SILBERBERG
Second: MIRANDA

Resolved

That the Board of Directors approve the proposal as presented by JB Bostick. 

Motion: GONSOWSKI
Second: MIRANDA

The Association’s next Board meeting will be held March 16th, 2021 at 7:00pm via teleconference. 

As there were no further items to discuss, the Open Session was adjourned at 7:52p.m.

APPROVED DATE

The motion passed unanimously

The motion passed unanimously

The motion passed unanimously

www.fsresidential.com 2
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2021 

 

HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 

 

MINUTES 

              

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The Open Session meeting for the Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation Board of Directors 

was called to order at 7:18 p.m. 

 

DIRECTORS PRESENT    DIRECTORS ABSENT 

       

Nancy Silberberg      

Jeff Bradley 

Allen Miranda  

Cory Gonsowski 

 

FIRSTSERVICE RESIDENTIAL 

 

Casey Donaldson Community Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION SUMMARY 

 

In accordance with Civil Code Section 4935(a), the Board of Directors met in Executive Session 

prior to the Open Session meeting in order to consider litigation, matters relating to the 

formation of contracts with third parties, member discipline, personnel matters, or to meet 

with a member, upon the member's request, regarding the member's payment of assessments, 

as specified in Civil Code. A separate set of minutes was prepared. 

 

COMMITTEE UPDATE & INVITED GUESTS 

 

A. Community Projects & Invited Guests 

This item serves as place holder for the for the Board of Directors to discuss the painting 

project. 

 

REPORTS 

 

Motion: Bradley 

Second: Miranda 
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Resolved: That the following reports be reviewed and filed. 

 

A. Work Order Report 

B. Management Report 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

HOMEOWNER FORUM 

 

There were approximately 4 homeowners in attendance who brought to the Boards attention 

various concerns and questions regarding the painting project, pending Architectural Guidelines 

and requesting status on specific homeowner requests. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Motion: Gonsowski 

Second: Miranda 

 

Resolved: The Board of Directors resolved to approve items A through C. 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – December 2020 

Resolved: That the Board approved the Open Session minutes dated December 15, 2020 

as presented. 

 

B. Financial Statement – December 2020 

 

Approved: That the Board approves the Association’s income statement 

for December 31, 2020, comparing actual results to budget, 

reserve statement, bank statements and reconciliations, 

check history report and general ledger as presented, subject 

to an annual audit. The report reflects a year to date net 

operating (loss) of $(-476.07) and year-to-date reserve 

funding of $108,784.59 compared to the year-to-date reserve 

funding budget of $100,803.00. The actual year-to-date 

operating expenses were $93,192.04. The budgeted year-to-

date operating expenses were $92,418.00. The reserves are 

funded through December 31, 2020. The association has 

$54,570.26 in operating funds, which represents 2.14 

months of budgeted expenses and reserve contributions. The 

association has $1,842,155.67 in reserve funds. 
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C. 2020 Year End Audit 

 

The Board of Directors have approved the audit as presented pending an answer on 

a specific line item of the audit.  

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

End Consent Calendar 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

A. 5 Year sprinkler certification 

 

Motion: Silberberg 

Second: Miranda 

 

Resolved: The Board of Directors approve the proposal from AD Fire for the fire sprinkler 

repairs at Tierra Montanosa in the amount of $15,575.00.  

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

B. Tierra Montanosa Monuments 

 

This item has been tabled due to further quotes on a new scope of work. 

 

C. Tierra Montanosa Asphalt Project 

 

This item has been tabled due to updated proposal from JB Bostick.  

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Architectural Agenda 

 

 There are no new plans presented at this time. 

B. Various Tree Removals 

 

 Motion: Silberberg 

Second: Bradley 

 

Resolved: The Board of Directors approve the proposal dated 10/16/20 in the amount of 

$3,640.00 to remove trees at 40 Tierra Seguro and 13 Tierra Montanosa. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 
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C. 25 Tierra Plano Wall Repair 

 

 Motion: Gonsowski 

Second: Miranda 

 

Resolved: The Board of Directors approve the proposal dated 12/10/20 as presented 

by Alpha Regional in the amount of $1,450.00. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 

The next Board of Directors meeting is scheduled for February 16, 2021, at 7:30p.m held via 

teleconference.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

As there were no further items to discuss, the Open Session was adjourned at 8:46 p.m. 

 

 

APPROVED:         DATE:     
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Tierra Montanosa Maintenance 
Corporation 

MEMORANDUM

DATE: 01/29/2021 

TO: The Membership 

FROM: Board of Directors 

RE: 09/30/2020 Fiscal Year End Audit 

Enclosed for your review are the 2019-2020 year-end financial statements for Tierra 
Montanosa Maintenance Corporation. 

Civil Code requires that the Association engage a Certified Public Accountant to perform 
an audit or review of the financial statements for any fiscal year in which the gross 
income of the Association exceeds $75,000. 

Please note negative fund balances represent pending reserve transfers to operating.  

A list of the names and addresses of the current members is located at the Association’s 
managing office. 

Should you have any questions regarding the enclosed information, please feel free to 
contact Casey Donaldson of FirstService Residential at (949) 448-6185 or 
Casey.Donaldson@fsresidential.com

Sincerely, 

Casey Donaldson 



Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation (the “Association”) which comprise the
balance sheet as of September 30, 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balance and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance
Corporation as of September 30, 2020 , and results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter on Future Major Repairs and Replacements

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statement, taken as a whole. We have not applied procedures to
determine whether the funds designated for future repairs and replacements as discussed in Note 3 are adequate to meet such future costs, because
such determination is outside the scope of our audit. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Disclaimer of Opinion of Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Supplementary Information on Future Repairs and Replacements
on page 11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Newman Certified Public Accountant, PC
Carlsbad, California
January 12, 2021



Operating
Fund

Replacement
Fund Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,465$ 1,830,690$ 1,863,155$

Assessments receivable 12,765 12,765

Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,019) (6,019)

Prepaid insurance 3,227 3,227

Prepaid income taxes 1,502 1,502

Due from (to) fund (22,091) 22,091 -

Total assets 21,849$ 1,852,781$ 1,874,630$

Liabilities

Accounts payable 25,882$ 66,562$ 92,444$

Prepaid assessments 11,536 - 11,536

Contract liabilities (Assessments received in
advance - replacement fund)

1,786,219 1,786,219

Total liabilities 37,418 1,852,781 1,890,199

Fund balances (15,569) - (15,569)

Total liabilities and fund balances 21,849$ 1,852,781$ 1,874,630$

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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Operating
Fund

Replacement
Fund

Total

Revenues

Owners assessments 309,624$ 302,700$ 612,324$

Insurance claim income 5,639 6,309 11,948

Bad debt recovery 18,304 18,304

Interest 11 15,337 15,348

Other member income 2,431 2,431

Total revenues 336,009 324,346 660,355

Expenses

Utilities

Electricity and gas 28,491 28,491

Water 57,484 57,484

Telephone 755 755

86,730 - 86,730

Maintenance

Landscape and irrigation 83,048 83,048

Tree trimming 23,712 23,712

Common area repairs and maintenance 21,398 12,160 33,558

Plumbing 10,875 10,875

Pool and spa 14,455 7,944 22,399

Pest control 7,771 7,771

Janitorial 4,351 4,351

Patrol and security 8,249 8,249

Fences and walls 16,803 16,803

Fire prevention 16,378 16,749 33,127

Street sweeping 2,141 2,141

Roof repair and maintenance 6,955 29,397 36,352

Streets and drives 5,228 5,228

Painting 196,208 196,208

Insurance claim expenses 5,639 16,145 21,784

181,260 324,346 505,606

Administrative

Insurance 36,068 36,068

Management 36,382 36,382

Management reimbursables 15,708 15,708

Administrative expense 12,958 12,958

Legal and professional 4,150 4,150

Income tax expense 4,674 4,674

109,940 - 109,940

Total expenses 377,930 324,346 702,276

Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under) expenses (41,921) - (41,921)

Beginning fund balances 19,052 - 19,052

Transfer to/from contract liabilities 7,300 7,300

Ending fund balances (15,569)$ -$ (15,569)$

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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Operating
Fund

Replacement
Fund

Total

Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under) expenses (41,921)$ -$ (41,921)$

Adjustments to reconcile excess (deficit) of revenues

over (under) expenses to net cash provided (used) by

operating activities

Decrease (Increase) in operating assets:

Accounts receivable 17,498 17,498

Allowance for doubtful accounts (18,918) (18,918)

Prepaid insurance 2,247 2,247

Prepaid income tax (1,502) (1,502)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 9,086 30,129 39,215

Prepaid assessments 2,113 2,113

Income taxes payable (4,424) (4,424)

Contract liabilities (Assessments received in advance -
replacement fund)

150,356 150,356

Total adjustments 6,100 180,485 186,585

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (35,821) 180,485 144,664

Cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - - -

Cash provided (used) by financing activities

Transfer to contract liabilities 7,300 7,300

Interfund borrowings 43,136 (43,136) -

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 50,436 (43,136) 7,300

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,615 137,349 151,964

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 17,850 1,693,341 1,711,191

Ending cash and cash equivalents 32,465 1,830,690$ 1,863,155$

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Income taxes paid 6,000$

Interest paid -$

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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1. Organization
Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation (the “Association”) was incorporated on October 25, 1993 as a nonprofit
mutual benefit corporation under the laws of California, for the purposes of maintaining and preserving common
property. The Association consists of 205 residential homes and is located in Rancho Santa Margarita, California.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the Board
of Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Fund Accounting
The Association’s governing documents provide certain guidelines for governing its financial activities. To ensure

observance of limitations and restrictions on the use of financial resources, the Association maintains its accounts using

fund accounting. Financial resources are classified for accounting and reporting purposes in the following funds

established according to their nature and purpose:

Operating Fund - The fund is used to account for financial resources available for the general operations of

the Association.

Replacement Fund - The fund is used to accumulate financial resources designated for future major repairs

and replacements.

Members Assessments
Association members are subject to monthly assessments to provide funds for the Association’s operating expenses and

major repairs and replacements. Assessment revenue is recognized as the related performance obligations are satisfied

at transaction amounts expected to be collected. The Association’s performance obligations related to its operating

assessments are satisfied over time on a daily pro-rata basis using the input method. The performance obligations

related to the replacement fund assessments are satisfied when these funds are expended for their designated purpose.

Assessments receivable at the balance sheet date are stated at the amounts expected to be collected from outstanding
assessments from unit owners. The Association’s policy is to retain legal counsel and place liens on properties of owners
whose assessments are delinquent. Any excess assessments at year end are retained by the Association for use in the
succeeding year. The Association treats uncollectible assessments as variable consideration. Methods, inputs, and
assumptions used to evaluate whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained include consideration of past
experience and susceptibility to factors outside the Association’s control. After the Board of Directors has exhausted all
efforts to collect delinquent accounts, the Board of Directors may elect to write off uncollectible balances.

The Association recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,019 to reflect an estimate of accounts that may not
be collectible, which includes accounts receivable greater than 90 days old.

Contract Liabilities (Assessments received in advance - replacement fund)

The Association recognizes revenue from members as the related performance obligations are satisfied. A contract

liability (assessments received in advance - replacement fund) is recorded when the Association has the right to receive

payment in advance of satisfaction of performance obligations related to replacement reserve assessments.

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Income Tax
The Association’s policy is to record interest expense or penalties related to income tax in operating expenses.

Capital Assets and Depreciation Policy
The Association has not capitalized real and personal common area property contributed by the developer.
Replacements and improvements to real property are also not capitalized; rather, they are charged to the respective
fund in the period the cost is incurred. Significant personal property assets are capitalized and depreciated over their
estimated lives using straight-line depreciation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the Association’s cash, checking accounts, money market funds and investments in

certificates of deposit with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 12, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Association maintains bank accounts with balances that exceed FDIC federal insurance of $250,000. The financial

institution may carry private insurance, which may or may not be sufficient to reimburse for any losses. At September

30, 2020, $1,127,492 was exposed to risk.

3. Future Major Repairs and Replacements
The Association’s governing documents require funds to be accumulated for future major repairs and replacements.
Accumulated funds are held in separate bank accounts and are generally not available for expenditures for normal
operations.

The Board of Directors conducted a reserve study to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of
the components of common property. The table included in the unaudited Supplementary Information on Future Major
Repairs and Replacements is based on this study.

The Association is funding such major repairs and replacements over the estimated useful lives of the components
based on the study’s estimates of current replacement costs, considering amounts previously accumulated in the
replacement fund. Actual expenditures, however, may vary from estimated amounts and the variations may be material.
Therefore, amounts accumulated in the replacement fund may or may not be adequate to meet future needs. If
additional funds are needed, however, the Association has the right, subject to its governing documents, to increase
regular assessments or to levy special assessments, or it may delay major repairs and replacements until funds are
available.

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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4. FASB ASC 606 New Accounting Guidance Implementation

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).  Topic 606 supersedes the revenue recognition
requirements in FASB ASC 972-605, Real Estate - Common Interest Realty Associations (CIRA), Revenue Recognition, and
requires the recognition of revenue when promised goods and services are transferred to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which a CIRA expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

The Association adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of October 01, 2019, using the modified retrospective
method of transition, which requires the cumulative effect of the changes related to the adoption be charged to the
beginning balance.  The Association applied the new guidance using the practical expedient in Topic 606 that allows the
guidance to be applied only to contracts that were not complete as of  October 01, 2019. Adoption of the new guidance
resulted in changes to our accounting policies for assessment revenue and contract liabilities related to the replacement
fund, as previously described.

The adoption of the new revenue recognition guidance resulted in the following change to the fund balance as of
 October 01, 2019:

Fund balance, as previously reported, October 01, 2019 $ 1,654,915

Adjustment (1,635,863)

Fund balance, as adjusted, October 01, 2019 $ 19,052

The effect of the adoption is a decrease in September 30, 2020 replacement fund assessments and a recording of a
contract liability (assessments received in advance - replacement fund). The Association has no customer contract
modifications that had an effect on the Association’s transition to the new guidance.

The modified retrospective method requires us to disclose the effect of applying the new guidance on each item
included in our September 30, 2020 financial statements.  Following are the line items from our balance sheet as of
September 30, 2020, that were affected, the amounts that would have been reported under the former guidance, the
effects of applying the new guidance, and the balances reported under the new guidance:

Amounts that
would have

been reported

Effects of
applying new

guidance As reported

Liabilities:

Contract liabilities (Assessments received

in advance - replacement reserve) -$ 1,786,219$ 1,786,219$

Fund Balance:

     Ending fund balance 1,770,650$ (1,786,219)$ (15,569)$

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
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The following are the line items from the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balances and the
statement of cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2020, that were affected, the amounts that would have been
reported under the former guidance, the effects of applying the new guidance, and the amounts reported under the new
guidance:

Amounts that
would have been

reported

Effects of
applying new

guidance As reported

Revenue:

     Regular assessments 769,980$ (157,656)$ 612,324$

     Excess of revenues over expenses 115,735$ (157,656)$ (41,921)$

Cash Flows:

     Excess of revenues over expenses 115,735$ (157,656)$ (41,921)$

Increase in contract liabilities (Assessments

 received in advance -replacement reserves) -$ 157,656$ 157,656$

5. Income Taxes

The Association elected to file its federal income tax returns as a homeowners association under Internal Revenue Code
Section 528. For its California income tax return, the Association qualifies for tax exempt status as a homeowners’
association under California Revenue and Taxation code section 23701(t). For both Federal and California returns, the
Association is generally taxed on income not related to membership dues and assessments, such as interest income and
non-member income. The Internal Revenue Service and the California Franchise Tax Board can examine the
Association’s income tax returns generally up to three years and four years, respectively.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to evaluate tax positions
taken by the Association and recognize a tax liability if the Association has taken an uncertain position that more likely
than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service.  Management has analyzed the tax
positions taken by the Association and has concluded that as of the year end, there are no uncertain positions taken or
expected to be taken that would require recognition of a liability or disclosure in the financial statements. The
Association is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods
in progress.

6. Operating Fund Deficit and Interfund Balances

At September 30, 2020, the Association’s Operating Fund balance was in deficit $15,569, and the Operating Fund owed
the Replacement Fund $22,091. The balance comprised primarily of unpaid monthly budgeted Replacement Fund
contributions from the Operating Fund.

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
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The  Association's Board of Directors, in conjunction with a reserve study expert, conducted a

reserve study dated May 15, 2020  to  estimate the remaining useful  lives and  the replacement

costs of the components of common property. Replacement costs were based on the estimated costs

to repair or replace the common property components at the date of the study. Estimated current costs

have not been revised since that date and do not take into account the effects of inflation between the

date of the study and the date that the components will require repair and replacement.

The  following  information  is  based  on  the  study  and  presents  significant  information  about  the

components of common property.

Study Component
Estimated
remaining
useful lives

Estimated current
replacement costs

Streets 0 322,809$

Roofs 25 1,513,890

Painting 0-9 299,136

Fencing and walls 9-19 428,119

Lighting 6-9 147,500

Pool area 0-19 290,570

Decks 3-4 537,193

Doors 4-19 336,350

Landscape 0-4 75,275

Miscellaneous 0-4 223,000

Termite control and wood repairs 0-4 88,500

4,262,342$

See the Balance Sheet for replacement fund cash, cash equivalents and investments balances at September 30, 2020.

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation

Supplementary Information on Future Major Repairs and Replacements

September 30, 2020

(Unaudited)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(See Independent Auditor's Report)

11



 

 

15241 Laguna Canyon Road, Irvine, CA 92618 

Phone: (949) 448-6000  Fax: (949) 448-6400 

www.fsresidential.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please be advised that neither the association, 

FirstService Residential, nor Welcome Link can alter the 

insurance certificate or add a mortgagee clause.  Please 

contact the insurance agent listed on the policy or visit 

EIO Direct (www.eoidirect.com) to request these 

alterations. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Tierra Montanosa
Maintenance Corporation
Certificate of
Insurance (Association)





SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

$

$

24661 Del Prado, Suite 3
Prendiville Insurance Agency

Cert ID 24011

15241 Laguna Canyon Road

CIBA Program

Lexington Insurance Company 19437

Hartford Insurance Company 29424

Accredited Surety & Casualty 26379

AmTrust - Wesco Insurance Co. 25011

08/09/2021

California, LLC

Y

08/08/2021 08/08/2022023627388

A

Fidelity Bond

License #0740433

15241 Laguna Canyon Road

N

Y

08/08/2021 08/08/2022

Y

CIBA-000003-01-A55361

A

B

E

C

X

X

X

X

  

Dana Point CA 92629

Irvine CA 92618

Irvine CA 92618

(949) 487-9696 (949) 487-9626

X X

X

X

X

            

            

            

            

   1,000,000

            

   1,000,000

   1,000,000

   1,000,000

   5,000,000

   5,000,000

            

       5,000

   2,500,000

GL Deductible

Y

08/08/2021 08/08/2022CIBA-000003-01-A55361

08/08/2021 08/08/2022WWC3548012

       1,000

            

    10,000

   1,000,000

   2,000,000

   1,000,000

FirstService Residential California, LLC

A) Property #CIBA-000001-02-A55361, 08/08/2021 - 08/08/2022: $64,813,006 Limit, $25,000
Deductible/$100,000 Wildfire Deductible
FirstService Residential California, LLC is Named as Additional Insured as Their Interests May
Appear, as Respects: Auto Liability, CGL, D&O Liability, Fidelity Bond, and Umbrella Liability.
Walls-In Coverage is Included. 205 Units, 41 Buildings. 100% Replacement Cost Valuation. Wind &
Hail Coverage is Included. Boiler & Machinery Coverage is Included.
Building Ordinance Coverage:
A(Undamaged)=Included, B(Demolition)=20%, C(Increased Construction Costs)=20%
*CANCELLATION: 30 DAY NOTICE, EXCEPT 10 DAY NOTICE FOR NON-PAYMENT OF PREMIUM.

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation
c/o FirstService Residential

Fidelity Bond
Deductible $25,000

08/08/202208/08/2021PENDING

DC2134513 08/08/2021 08/08/2022 D&O Deductible
$2,500    1,000,000D YD&O Liability
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

A PLANNED COMMUNITY 

MEMBERSHIP INFORMATION 

 

 
The Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation offers many advantages to the home buyer. In 

order to protect and preserve these benefits, however, certain limitations and restrictions are placed 

on members of the Corporation. 

 

The Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation is a California non-profit corporation consisting of 

those owners of homes within the ultimate boundaries of Tierra Montanosa. 

 

The purpose of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation is to ensure that the common area 

amenities will be maintained in an attractive manner and will be available for the enjoyment of all 

residents. Your automatic membership in the Corporation provides a membership base to share in 

the future costs of maintaining the community. 

 

The attached Rules and Regulations and policies have been developed with consideration given to 

providing each resident with the greatest enjoyment of the facilities without infringing on other 

residents and their rights to quiet enjoyment of their homes and community. 

 

Although these Rules and Regulations support the CC&R's, they do not cover the entirety of the 

document. Please be sure to read the CC&R's carefully. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

   COMMON PROPERTY RULES 

 

 
1. Homeowners are prohibited from destroying, removing or altering the landscaping in the common 

property, regardless of the condition of the plantings. 

 

2. All weeds, rubbish, debris, or unsightly material or objects of any kind shall be regularly removed from 

the Residence and shall not be allowed to accumulate thereon. All clotheslines, refuse containers, trash 

cans, woodpiles, storage areas, machinery and equipment shall be prohibited upon any Residence unless 

obscured from view of adjoining streets or portions of the Covered Property from a height of six (6) feet 

or less. 

 

3. Nothing shall be altered or constructed in or removed from the Common Area without the prior written 

consent of the Board of Directors. 

 
4. Items posing a fire safety hazard, including tiki torches, decorative wood burning chimneys or fire pits, 

charcoal barbecues, smokers, or other open flamed items are not permitted for use within ten (10) feet of 

any permanent structure except where installed by the builder on a cement structure such as at the pool 

area.  UL-approved (Underwriters Laboratories) propane/gas barbecues and patio heaters are permitted 

when used properly per the manufacture’s specifications.  Variances requests must be submitted for 

review through the architectural submittal process and may be granted by the Board of Directors. 

 

5. Skateboards, scooters, in-line skates, miniature motorcycles or similar types of wheeled vehicles are not 

permitted for use within the common areas of the community including the streets, landscaped areas, and 

alleyways. 

 

6. All portable sports equipment including, but not limited to, basketball hoops, skateboard/bike ramps, 

recreational safety cones, hockey goals, etc. are not permitted for use or storage in common areas. 

 

7. The use of chalk is not permitted on the streets, sidewalks, or building exteriors. 

 

8. Riding of bikes is permitted for the purpose of gaining access to the public streets only.  Bike riding is 

not permitted on sidewalks and landscaped areas. 

 

9. Baseball, football, or other types of games involving thrown objects are not allowed. 

 

10. Violators will be held responsible for damages. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

TENANT RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

1.   The homeowner shall have the responsibility to acquaint their tenants and guests with the 

Rules and Regulations of the Corporation. 

 

2.   For the purpose of these Rules and Regulations a tenant shall be defined as anyone in possession of a 

member's home in exchange for any sort of consideration, or at the sufferance of the homeowners. 

 

3.   Violations will be assessed against the member even though the infraction was committed by a tenant or 

guest. 

 

4.   Any agreement for the leasing or rental of a Condominium shall be in writing and shall provide that the 

terms of such lease shall be subject in all respects to the provisions of the Maintenance Corporation 

Management Documents and any applicable agreements between the Maintenance Corporation and any 

of the Federal Agencies. 

 

5.   Any Owner who shall lease his/her Condominium shall be responsible for assuring compliance by such 

Owner's lessee with the Maintenance Corporation Management Documents. 

 

6.   No Condominium shall be leased for any period less than seven (7) days. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

PET RULES 
 

 

1.   No livestock, reptiles, poultry or other animals of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept 

upon the Covered Property, except that dogs, cats or other household pets may be kept on 

the Residence, provided they are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purpose, 

or in numbers deemed unreasonable by the Board. 

 

2.   Animals belonging to Owners, occupants or their licensees, tenants or invitees within 

Properties must be either kept within an enclosure or on a leash being held by a person 

capable of controlling the animal. 

 

3.   Local County and/or municipal animal ordinances will be strictly enforced (i.e., licensing, 

vaccines, leash laws, etc.). 

 

4.   All animals shall be kept on a leash when on any portion of the Covered Property except 

when confined within a Residence. 

 

5.   Excessive dog barking or other animal noise will be deemed a nuisance. 

 

6.   The Corporation shall have the right to prohibit maintenance of any animal which 

constitutes, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, a nuisance to any other Owner. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

PARKING RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

1.   Vehicle Codes will be strictly enforced. 

 

2.   Those portions of the Properties intended for parking of motorized vehicles, shall be used 

to park only the following motorized land vehicles designed and used primarily for 

noncommercial passenger transport: automobiles; passenger vans designed to 

accommodate ten (10) or fewer people; two wheel motorcycles; and pickup trucks having 

manufacturer's rating or payload capacity of three-quarter (3/4) ton or less ("Authorized 

Vehicles"). 

 

3. Recreational vehicles and commercial vehicles are prohibited within the properties except for 

temporary parking for loading or unloading of vehicles, or the temporary parking of commercial 

vehicles providing delivery, maintenance or repair services to the common areas or a residence. 

 

3.1 Recreational Vehicles - Including, without limitation, trailers, boats, campers, trailer 

coaches, buses, house cars, camp cars, motor homes (if a size larger than seven (7) feet in 

height and/or greater than one hundred twenty-four (124) inches in wheel base length), or 

any other similar type of equipment or vehicle. No owner/occupant shall park, store or keep 

within the property any Recreational Vehicles unless the vehicle is parked in the garage. 

3.2 Large Commercial Vehicles - All vehicles exceeding a carrying capacity of three-quarter 

(3/4) of a ton.  No owner/occupant shall park, store or keep within the property any Large 

Commercial Vehicles. 

3.3 Small Commercial Vehicles – All vehicles with a carrying capacity up to and including a 

maximum of three-quarter (3/4) of a ton and has been modified from stock for commercial 

use or purpose.   No owner/occupant shall park, store or keep within the property any Small 

Commercial Vehicles unless the vehicle is covered with a vehicle cover or parked in the 

garage. 

 

3.3.1 Examples of such modification may include one or more of the following: 

 

3.3.1.1 Installations of one or more racks to the vehicle, e.g. pipe, glass, and or 

tool racks. 

3.3.1.2 The addition of doors, drawers, and bins used for storage of parts and 

tools. 

3.3.1.3 Tools and/or equipment mounted or carried (either permanently or 

temporarily) on a vehicle, e.g. air compressor, welding equipment, or 

generator. 

3.3.1.4 Installation of hydraulic lifts, gates, cranes, hoists, etc.  Equipment for 

the use of handicapped persons is exempt. 

3.3.1.5 The installation and use of signs and/or advertising on a vehicle.  

Bumper stickers of standard size are excluded. 

3.3.1.6 The addition of fences, bordered beds, side stakes, or the like to retain 

supplies, machinery, tools, and goods. 

3.3.1.7 The installation of vacuums, motorized brushes or other special-purpose 

equipment, e.g. street sweepers. 

 

3.3.2 Other factors that prohibit parking of small commercial vehicles include:  

 

3.3.2.1 The regular storage of equipment, goods, products, materials, tools, or 

the like on the vehicles so as to be visible within the property. 

3.3.2.2 The vehicle is clearly used for industrial, commercial trade, professional 

or business purposes. 
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4.   Each Authorized Vehicle which is owned or operated by or within the control of an Owner 

or a Resident of an Owner's Unit, if kept within the Properties, shall be parked in the 

assigned garage of that Owner to the extent of the space available; provided that each 

Owner shall ensure that any such garage accommodates at least the number of vehicles for 

which it was initially constructed by the Developer. 

 

5.   No automobile. Commercial Vehicle, Recreational Vehicle, or any other motorized vehicle 

may be dismantled, rebuilt, repaired, serviced or repainted on the Covered Property unless 

performed within a completely enclosed structure located on a Residence which completely 

screens the sight and sound of such activity from streets. Maintenance Corporation 

Property and neighboring Residences. 

 

6.   No garage, trailer, camper, motor home, or recreational vehicle shall be used as a residence 

in the properties for either temporary or permanent purposes. 

 

7.   No garage door shall remain open, except for a temporary purpose, and except as may be 

provided in the regulations promulgated by SAMLARC. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 

 

SELECTED PARKING RULES 
 

 

Effective May 1, 2001 the parking rules shall include: 

 

• "Vehicles parked in visitor spaces, without a parking permit displayed, will be 

protected from towing until 2 a.m. After 2 a.m. any vehicle parked in visitor parking 

spaces without a permit will be towed." One other concern the Board has addressed is 

that any vehicle parked in visitor spaces without a permit after 2 a.m. will receive one 

warning before being towed. The warning will notify the owner that a permit is 

required. 

 

• Vehicle Codes will be strictly enforced. Unauthorized vehicles parked within red curb zones, 

fire zones, handicap parking spaces or visitor parking spaces are subject to immediate 

towing. All unassigned parking spaces within Tierra Montanosa are designated as Visitor 

Parking. Visitor Spaces are available on a first-come, first-served basis. All vehicles parked 

within Visitor Spaces must display a valid Guest Parking Pass in the front window. 

 

•  Reserved parking spaces are identified with the wording "RESERVED" a number painted 

on the parking space. These areas are restricted. Any unauthorized vehicles parked in these 

areas will be towed immediately. 

 

•  It is the responsibility of each member of the Association to make both the Management and 

the Association's Security Service aware of any special arrangements which have been made 

to accommodate a member's special parking needs (e.g., extended vacations, family 

emergencies, etc.). 

 

• Garage Doors must remain closed except for temporary purposes. 

 

•  Any vehicles parked by a member in front of another member's garage or which in any way 

impede the free flow of traffic through the Association Properties are subject to immediate 

towing. Cars parked by members in front of their own garages which do not impede the free 

flow of traffic through the Association Properties are subject to towing if they remain in front 

of the member's garage for longer than a two (2) hour period. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

PARKING RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

1.   Vehicle Codes will be strictly enforced. Unauthorized vehicles parked within red curb zones, fire zones, 

handicapped parking spaces or visitor parking spaces without displaying a valid Visitor Parking Pass are 

subject to immediate towing. All unassigned parking spaces within Tierra Montanosa (those without 

numbers printed on them) are designated as Visitor Parking. 

 

2.    In accordance with California Vehicle Code, vehicles that are not removed from the property at least 

every 96 hours will be cited and towed at the vehicle owner's expense. 

 

3.    Those portions of the Properties intended for parking of motorized vehicles, shall be used to park only 

the following motorized land vehicles designed and used primarily for non-commercial passenger 

transport: automobiles; passenger vans designed to accommodate ten (10) or fewer people; two-wheel 

motorcycles; and pick-up trucks having manufacturer's rating or pay load capacity of three-quarter (3/4) 

ton or less ("Authorized Vehicles"). 

 

4.    No Vehicle which is not an Authorized Vehicle, including without limitation, "Recreation Vehicles", 

and "Commercial Vehicles or Equipment" as defined in the SAMLARC Declaration of Covenants, 

Conditions and Restrictions, inoperable vehicles or parts of vehicles, aircraft, or any vehicle or vehicular 

equipment deemed a nuisance by the Board, shall be parked, stored or kept within the Properties or on 

any street abutting or visible from the Properties unless the vehicle is either (i) kept in an area 

designated by SAMLARC'S Board of Directors or (ii) is temporarily parked for loading or unloading 

purposes. 

 

5.    It will be the responsibility of the homeowner to inform his/her visitor of the Parking Rules & 

Regulations and to provide a Parking Permit to their visitors to be displayed in their vehicle if they are 

parking within the Association's designated visitor parking areas. 

 

6.    Authorized Vehicles parking in any visitor space within the Properties must display in their front window a     

       valid visitor parking pass. It is the responsibility of each Owner within the community to make both 

management and the Association's towing company aware of any special arrangements which have been 

made to accommodate a member's special parking needs (e.g., extended vacations, family emergencies, 

etc.) 

 

7.    Visitor spaces will be available on a first-come, first-served basis. The possession of a visitor parking pass   

       does not guarantee that a space will be available for that vehicle. 

 

8.    Any vehicles parked by a member in front of another member's garage or which in any way impede the 

free flow of traffic through the Association Properties are subject to immediate towing. Cars parked by 

members in front of their own garages which do not impede the free flow of traffic through the 

Association Properties are subject to towing if they remain in front of the member's garage for longer 

than a two (2) hour period. Any costs incurred for vehicle towing will be the sole responsibility of the 

vehicle owner. 

 

9.    No automobile. Commercial Vehicle, Recreational Vehicle, or any other motorized vehicle may be 

dismantled, rebuilt, repaired, serviced or repainted on the Covered Property unless performed within a 

completely enclosed structure located on a Residence which completely screens the sight and sound of 

such activity from streets. Maintenance Corporation Property and neighboring Residences. 

 

10.  No garage, trailer, camper, motorhome, or recreational vehicle shall be used as a residence in the 

Properties for either temporary or permanent purposes. 
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11. No garage door shall remain open, except for a temporary purpose, and except as may be provided in the  

      regulations promulgated by SAMLARC. 

 

12. Owners are responsible for all parking violations of tenants and their guests. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA 

 

MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 
 

 

DATE:       August 31,2001 

 

TO:            Tierra Montanosa Homeowners and Residents 

 

FROM:      Board of Directors 

 

RE:            Parking Rules and Parking Permits 

 

 

Dear New Homeowner: 

 

Following please find a Summary of the Parking Rules of Tierra Montanosa Maintenance.  Please save 

them for your reference. 

 

Owners are entitled to a parking permit that all residents must display from their rear view mirrors 

while parked in the unmarked guest parking spaces. Please remember that permits must be visible. If 

you did not receive a parking permit from the prior owner of your home, please call Merit Property 

Management, Inc., at 949/448-6000. 

 

Owners are responsible for providing the permits to their tenants.  

                             

Each home is entitled to one permit. Additional permit requests must be received in writing and will be 

considered by the Board on a case by case basis. 

 

Failure to properly display a parking permit while parked in the unmarked guest parking area spaces 

will result on the first offense in a citation and on the second offense tow of the vehicle at the owner's 

expense. 

 

Thank you for your cooperation with the Parking Rules of the Association. 

 

If you have any questions, please contact George Ross at Merit Property Management. 

 

Sincerely, 

The Board of Directors 

Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

SIGN RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

1.    No sign or billboard of any kind shall be displayed to the public view on any portion of the 

Covered Property except (1) such signs as may be used by the Declarant or its sales agents 

in connection with the development of the Covered Property and sale of the 

Condominiums, and (2) signs that are installed or displayed by the Maintenance 

Corporation; provided, however, that in accordance with Section 712 of the California 

Civil Code, an Owner may display on his/her Residence, or on real property owned by 

others with their consent, or both, signs which are reasonably located, in plain view of the 

public, are of reasonable dimensions and design, do not adversely affect public safety, 

including traffic safety, and which advertise the property for sale, lease, or exchange, or 

advertise directions to the property or the Owner's or agent's address and telephone 

number. 

 

2.    All signs or billboards and the conditions promulgated for the regulation thereof shall 

conform to the requirements of all applicable governmental ordinances and SAMLARC. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA 
MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

POOL AND SPA RULES 
 

The following rules apply to the pool, spa, patio and adjacent common areas: 
 
 
1. Use of pool / spa facilities is a privilege which can be revoked by the Board of 

Directors in response to conduct which prevents another owner or tenant from 
enjoying their pool/spa privilege. 

 
2. Pool privileges are for owners or tenants and their guests.  If an owner elects to 

lease their unit and gives pool/spa access rights to the tenant, the owner forfeits 
their access rights. 

 
3. Children under the age of 14 years must be accompanied by an adult. Children who 

are not potty-trained are not permitted in the pool or spa without a swim diaper. 
 
4. Drinking of liquors, beers, or other fermented beverages on this property, 

specifically the pool/spa and patio area, common areas, common streets, and 
driveways is prohibited and subject to criminal prosecution and a fine. (RSM Ord. 
No. 00-24, § 1(4.10.020), 9-7-2000) 

 
5. No smoking. 
 
6. No glass objects, skateboards, skates, scooters or bicycles. 
 
7. No yelling or harsh/foul language. 

 
8. Radios/music players must be kept at very low volume levels, so as not to be heard 

outside of the pool area. 
 
9. No animals or pets. 
 
10. No diving, running or pushing. 
 
11. No soaps, bath oils, or bath salts are allowed in pool or spa. 
 
12. Maximum of 4 guests per owner or tenant, without prior approval by the Board of 

Directors.  All guests must be accompanied by the owner or tenant at all times. 
 
13. Pool gates are to remain closed at all times.  Owners or tenants caught propping the 

gate open will have their pool privileges revoked.  Trespassing is prohibited. 



 

 

 

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE 

 
I. Discovery of Violation 

 

A.  Any Violation that IA an alleged violation of the documents and the rules of me 

Corporation will be processed according to the procedures outlined herein. 

 

B.   In the event two or more members of the Corporation or Board of Directors file a 

Violation Report the Board would act as follows: 

 

1.    Send a letter to the homeowner stating the alleged violation and date needed to cure 

said violation. 

 

2.    Upon expiration of the cure date, if the violation still exists, a second letter will be 

sent to the homeowner stating that the failure to abide by Corporation Rules and 

Regulations has imposed a hardship on the Corporation and the owner will be 

asked to attend a hearing with the Board of Directors. 

 

3.    The homeowner will be notified as to the decision rendered by the Board as a result 

of the hearing. If the homeowner is found to be in violation of the Corporation's 

documents, the Board will either a) seek remedy by use of the legal system, b) 

apply monetary fines to the homeowner's assessment billing, c) suspend the 

homeowner's right to use any recreational facilities, d) suspend voting privileges , 

e) record a notice of noncompliance encumbering the Unit, f) choose to correct 

(or cause to be corrected) the violation and assess the owner for reimbursement of 

costs, or g) a combination thereof. 

 

4.    If the decision is to pursue a monetary fine system, the Tierra Montanosa 

Maintenance Corporation Fine Schedule will apply. 

 

NOTE:    A violation is defined as an act in conflict with the CC&R's, Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations or Architectural Guidelines of the Corporation. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

RULES AND VIOLATION REPORT 
 

 

DATE:_______________ 

 

I. PERSON MAKING REPORT:       NAME _________________________________________  

 

BUILDING # ___________________________  

 

UNIT #: _______________________________  

 

PHONE NUMBER: ______________________  

 

II. DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION (fill in as completely as possible) 

 

DATE:_________ TIME:_________ LOCATION: ____________________________________  

 

in. DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATOR: 

 

NAME:____________________ PHONE NO.: _______________________________________  

 

BUILDING #:________________ UNIT #: __________________________________________  

 

IV. ADDITIONAL WITNESSES: 

 

NAME: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

BUILDING #:_________________UNIT #: __________________________________________  

 

NAME _______________________________________________________________________  

 

BUILDING #:________________UNIT #: ___________________________________________  

 

V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION TAKEN: 

 

DATE:_______________ 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ACTION: _____________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

SIGNATURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: ________________________________________  
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

FINE SCHEDULE 
 

 

1.    A letter will be sent to the homeowner stating the alleged violation. 

 

2.    A second letter will be sent to the homeowner stating the alleged violation continues and 

requests the homeowner appear before the Board of Directors. 

 

3.    If the result of the hearing is a monetary fine, a fine of $30 will be applied to owner's 

account 

 

4.    If the violation continues past the hearing and first fine stage, additional hearings may be 

scheduled and fines may be doubled. Any fines not paid may result in legal action in 

accordance with California law. 

 

5.    At any point, the Board may determine to use the legal system or cause correction of the 

violation to effect a cure and the owner may be responsible for legal fees and or 

reimbursement of costs to the Corporation. 

 

NOTE:    Should a violation occur which imposes financial obligation of the Corporation, 

then the party responsible for said violation shall reimburse, by way of a 

Penalty Assessment, the Corporation for this financial obligation. If, for 

example, a party damages a fence, tree or any other common property, repair and 

replacement costs will be charged to that party. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

PROCEDURE FOR HOMEOWNER HEARING 
 

 

Procedure: 

 

1. Statement of violation by acting chairperson. 

 

2. Violator's Statement. 

 

3. Review of CC&R requirement. Bylaws, and Rules and Regulations of the Corporation. 

 

4. Discussion and questioning of the violator by the Board members. 

 

5. Questions and final statement by alleged violator. 

 

6. Board ruling. 

 

7. Enforcement procedures as applicable. 

 

8. Adjournment. 

 

DOCUMENTATION 

 

Name of Violator ________________________ Phone Number:__________________________  

 

Address: _______________________________ Unit # _________________________________  

 

Nature of Violation: _____________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

Board Ruling: __________________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

Additional Comments: ___________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

Date:____________________________ 
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THE MATERIAL CONTAINED WITHIN THIS PACKET IS NOT INTENDED TO BE 

SUBSTITUTED FOR THE SERVICES OF AN ATTORNEY. THE LAW AND ITS 

INTERPRETATION ARE CONSTANTLY CHANGING. 

PLEASE CONSULT YOUR PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR REGARDING YOUR 

INVOLVEMENT IN A MAINTENANCE CORPORATION. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

PATIO AND BALCONY FURNISHING STANDARDS 

 

 
Pursuant to Article IV., Section 4.02, the Board of Directors has appointed an Architectural 

Committee to define the patio and terrace architectural standards set forth in the Declaration of 

Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Tierra Montanosa. The committee recommends the 

following policy be amended to the Rules and Regulations. 

 

With respect to the CC&Rs, Article IV., Section 4.02.A, "placement, kind, shape, material" the 

Architectural Committee has determined the following inclusive but not exhaustive list of items 

are acceptable as patio furniture and decorations: patio furniture rates as ASTM-G53 standard 

for weatherability; wooden, plastic, wicker, or metal benches, tables and furniture; umbrellas, 

barbecues, potted and hanging plants that do not pose a safety hazard in their placement, outdoor 

rated speakers, wind chimes, hoses and hose racks, fountains, Malibu and ground lights, sundials, 

clocks, art, and bird feeders. 

 

Furthermore, pursuant to Article IX., Section 9.09, "all...unsightly material or objects... shall be 

removed...from view" the following inclusive but not exhaustive list of items are prohibited as 

patio furniture, decorations, or other: wooden or metal cable/wire spools; indoor rated furniture: 

leather sofas, chairs, and loveseats; bicycles, clothes, clothesline, cleaning supplies, building 

materials, recyclables, sporting equipment, fans and all storage items. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Managed by Merit Property Management, Inc. 

1 Polaris Way, Aliso Viejo, CA  92656  
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ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES 

FOR 

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

 
I.    PURPOSE 

 

As set forth in the Declaration of Restrictions, the Architectural Committee is vested with the power 

to review and approve all Improvements to all Units for Tierra Montanosa Maintenance 

Corporation. Such Improvements include, without limitation, additions, modifications and 

alterations to Units, signs, fences, walls, landscaping, screens, patios and patio covers window 

treatments, air conditioning units and attic fans, and any other modifications to the exterior of a 

Unit or other Improvements or alterations to your home. 

 

The Architectural Committee does not seek to restrict individual creativity or personal preference 

but rather to help assure a continuity in design which will help preserve and improve the 

appearance of the Community and enhance the property values of all Owners in the Community. 

 

The Architectural Committee shall consist of not fewer than three (3) or more than five (5) persons 

as fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Members of the Architectural Committee 

shall receive no compensation for services rendered other than reimbursement by the Corporation 

for any expenses that might be incurred in performing their duties. The Architectural Committee 

has the right to retain architects or other construction specialists as may be necessary to perform its 

duties. 

 

Prior to the commencement of any addition, alteration or construction work of any type on any 

residential Unit in Tierra Montanosa, you must first make application to the Architectural 

Committee for approval of such work. Failure to obtain approval of the Architectural Committee 

may constitute a violation of the Declaration of Restrictions affecting your home. and may require 

modification or removal of unauthorized works of Improvement at your expense. The Board may, 

from time to time. adopt and promulgate Architectural Standards to be administered through the 

Architectural Committee as it deems appropriate. 

 

A building or other permit may be required by the County of Orange Building Department, or other 

governmental agencies prior to the commencement of any work. Neither the Architectural 

Committee, nor the Corporation assumes any responsibility for failure to obtain such permits. 

Also, obtaining such permits does not waive the obligation to obtain Architectural Committee 

approval. 
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II.   GUIDELINES 

 
A.    Submission Procedure and Requirements 

 

1)   All requests ("Requests") for Architectural Committee approval are to be made on the 

standard Tierra Montanosa Home Improvement Form (Exhibit A). 

 

2)   Submission of Requests. All Requests are to be made to the Tierra Montanosa 

Architectural Committee, c/o Merit Property Management, 1 Polaris Way, Aliso Viejo, CA  

92656. 

 

3)   Reasonable Fees. The Board of Directors, or the Architectural Committee, may assess 

a fee not to exceed $50.00 per submission for review of plans and specifications required 

pursuant to these Standards. 

 

4)   Construction Drawings. Plans and specifications for works of Improvement must be 

prepared in accordance with the applicable building codes, and with sufficient clarity and 

completeness to enable the Committee to make an informed decision on your request. 

 

5)   Submission of Application/or Improvements. Please forward three (3) sets of your 

proposed plans and specifications, together with the standard Home Improvement Form 

(Exhibit A), and the Facing, Adjacent and Impacted Neighbor Statement (Exhibit B) along 

with the following information to the Architectural Committee to constitute a complete 

Application. Please mail this information to the address noted above in item #2. One (1) set 

will be returned to you after completion of the review. 

 

a)   Plot plan drawn to scale showing the following: 

 

i) All proposed Improvements and relevant elevations, together with the desired 

location of such Improvements to the Unit. 

 

ii) Complete dimensions of the proposed Improvements. 

 

b)   Description of materials to be used, including the proposed color scheme. Samples 

should be provided. 

 

c)   Drainage plans (if applicable) where the established drainage pattern might be altered by 

the proposed Improvements. 

 

d)   Floor plans (if applicable) showing overall dimensions and area of Improvements 

reflecting your preliminary design concept. 

 

e)   Description of proposed construction scheduled. 

 

f)   Landscape plan and working drawings (if applicable). 

 
g)   If proposed Improvements require access over the Common Area or Common Facilities 

for purposes of transporting labor or materials, written permission shall be required 

from the Association. Any such requests must be filed with the Board of Directors 

prior to the commencement of your Improvements. 

 

h)   Any other information or documentation deemed to be necessary by the Architectural 

Committee in evaluating your request. 
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B.    Failure to Comply with Required Procedures. 

 

Unless all of the rules of the Architectural Committee have been complied with, such plans and 

specifications shall be deemed not submitted. Approval of plans and specifications by the 

Architectural Committee or Board of Directors of SAMLARC shall not be deemed to be approved 

by the Architectural Committee as such plans and specifications must also be submitted to and 

approved by the Architectural Committee of the Maintenance Corporation. The architectural 

standards of SAMLARC and the decisions of the Architectural Committee and/or the Board of 

Directors of SAMLARC shall prevail only to the extent of conflict 

 

C.    Approval of Architectural Committee. 

 

Decisions of the Architectural Committee and the reasons for the decisions shall be transmitted by 

the Committee to the Applicant at the address set forth in the application for approval, within thirty 

(30) days after receipt by the Committee of all materials required by the Committee. An application 

submitted shall be deemed approved, unless written disapproval or a request for additional 

information or materials by the Committee shall have been transmitted to the Applicant within 

thirty (30) days after the date of receipt by the Committee of all required materials. The Applicant 

shall meet any review or permit requirements of the County prior to making any alterations or 

Improvements. 

 

D.    Appeal. 

 

In the event plans and specifications submitted to the Architectural Committee are disapproved 

thereby, the party or parties making such submission may appeal in writing to the Board. The 

written request must be received by the Board not more than fifteen (15) days following the final 

decision of the Architectural Committee. The Board shall render its written decision in connection 

with a written appeal to the Board of a final decision of the Architectural Committee within forty-

five (45) days following receipt of the request to appeal. Failure of the Board to render such 

decision within such period of time shall be deemed a decision in favor of the appellant. 

 

E.    Enforcement. 

 

Failure to obtain the necessary approval from the Architectural Committee, or failure to complete 

the Improvements m conformity with the plans and specifications approved by the Architectural 

Committee, may constitute a violation of the Declaration of Restrictions and may require 

modifications or removal of any work or Improvement at your expense. 

 
F.     Violations. 

 

All Owners in Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation shall have the right and responsibility to 

bring to the attention of the Architectural Committee, any violations of the Standards set forth 

herein. 

 

G.    Inspection. 

 

Upon completion of an Improvement, the Owner shall submit a written Notice of Completion 

(Exhibit C) to the Architectural Committee. If for any reason an inspection has not been made 

with forty-five (45) days of notification by the Owner of the completion of an Improvement or the 

Owner requesting such inspection has not been notified of any noncompliance within thirty (30) 

days after such inspection, the Improvement shall be deemed to be completed in substantial 

conformance with approved plans and specifications. 
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H.    Control in SAMLARC 

 

No Improvements shall be made until there has been compliance with provisions of the Article 

entitled "Architectural Control" of the SAMLARC Declaration and the architectural, landscape and 

construction regulations and restrictions of SAMLARC. In the event of any irreconcilable 

differences between the decisions by the SAMLARC Board of Directors and the Board pertaining 

to architectural and landscape control, and the decision of the SAMLARC Board of Directors shall 

prevail to the extent necessary to eliminate such conflict 

 

III.  ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 

 
A.  Structural or material additions or alterations. 

 

Exteriors of any building shall conform to the material, colors, character and detailing as 

established on existing Units within the respective Tract. 

 

1)   Structures in this section shall conform to the original structural character of the 

existing Unit. 

 

2)   Patio sun shades, arbors and trellis structures shall be of wood construction only with 

the exception of vertical supports which may be of stucco or masonry. 

 

3)   Structures under this section will be stained or painted to match or be complimentary 

with colors used on its appurtenant Unit. 

 

4)   Structures in this section shall have either flat or shed roofs, or a form consistent with 

the existing roof lines. 

 

5)   In designing this addition, intrusion upon a neighbor's privacy, or the passage of light 

or air to a contiguous Condominium, shall be kept to an absolute minimum. 

 

B.  Landscaping and Other Related Improvement.  

 

No Owner shall further landscape or otherwise improve any Common Area or Common Facilities 

owned and maintained by Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation. 

 

C.   Drainage and Fill.  

 

All drainage of water from any Residence shall drain or flow into adjacent streets or alleys and shall 

not be allowed to drain or flow upon, across, or under any other portion of the Property unless an 

casement for such purpose is granted. An Owner shall not alter the drainage of water which exists 

pursuant to the drainage plan originally created at the time of the initial sale of his/her Condominium 

by the Developer except through the use of a positive drainage device which does not materially 

affect the concentration or flow direction of drainage water under said drainage plan. 

 

D.  Gutters and Downspouts.  

 

No gutters, downspouts or scuppers to control water shed from roofs shall be installed without prior 

approval of the Architectural Committee. Such Improvements shall be primed and painted to match 

the surface color of its appurtenant Unit Each Owner shall also insure that the gutter and downspout 

serving his/her Residence are kept clean and free of debris. 
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E.  Unsightly Items.  

 

All weeds, rubbish, debris or unsightly materials or objects of any kind shall be regularly removed 

from the Residence and shall not be allowed to accumulate thereon. All clotheslines, refuse 

containers, trash cans, wood piles, storage areas, machinery and equipment shall be prohibited upon a 

Residence unless obscured from view of adjoining streets or portions of the Covered Property from a 

height of six (6) feet or less. 

 

F.   Outside Installations. 

  

No outside installation of any type shall be erected or maintained on any Residence, excepting 

antenna installed by the Developer as a part of the initial construction of the Property and except as 

may be installed by, or with the prior written consent of the Architectural Committee. No patio or 

deck covers or lattice work, wiring, or installation of air conditioning, water softeners, or other 

machines shall be installed on the exterior of the buildings without prior Architectural Committee 

approval. 

 
G.  Antenna.  

 

No television, radio, or other electronic antenna or device of any kind for the 

reception or transmission of radio or television broadcasts or other means of communication 

shall hereafter be erected, constructed, placed or permitted to remain on the Covered Property 

unless they are (1) contained within a building or underground conduits, (2) completely 

obscured from view of any streets or any other portion of the Covered Property or (3) 

screened from view by an appropriate screen that has been approved in writing by the 

Architectural Committee. 

 

H.  Solar Energy Systems.  

 

As provided in Section 714 of the California Civil Code reasonable restrictions on the installation of 

solar energy systems that do not significantly increase the cost of the system or significantly decrease 

its efficiency or specified performance, or which allow for an alternative system of comparable costs, 

efficiency and energy conservation benefits may be imposed by the Architectural Committee 

Whenever approval is required for the installation or use of a solar energy system, the application for 

approval shall be processed and approved by the Architectural Committee in the same manner 

as an application for approval of an architectural modification to the property, and shall not 

be willfully avoided or delayed. 

 

I.    Window Coverings.  

 

Curtains, drapes, shutters or blinds may be installed as window covers. No window shall be covered 

with aluminum foil, newspapers or other material not designed for use as a window cover. 

 

J.    Water Supply Systems.  

 

No individual water supply or water softener system shall be permitted in any Unit unless such 

system is designed, located, constructed and equipped in accordance with the requirements, standards, 

and recommendations of any applicable water district, the City and County in which the Property is 

located, and all other applicable governmental authorities. 
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K.   Equipment and Storage Sheds.  

 

No structure of a temporary character, trailer tent, shack, garage, barn or other out-building shall be 

installed or used at any time, temporarily or permanently. 

 

L.   Deck Restrictions.  

 

Items stored on Exclusive Use Common Area Decks shall be limited to patio furniture, potted plants 

with adequate drainage, and barbeques. Such items shall be subject to Association rules and 

regulations. 

 

M. View.  

 

Each Owner by acceptance of a deed or other conveyance of a Condominium 

acknowledges that any construction or Improvement by Declarant, the Maintenance 

Corporation or any other Owner, or any owner of any other property may change, impair, 

obstruct, or otherwise affect any view that such Owner may have enjoyed at the time of 

purchase of his/her Condominium. The Maintenance Corporation Management Documents 

do not contain any provisions intended to protect any view or guarantee that any views that 

an Owner may have enjoyed will not be impaired or obstructed in the future by changes to 

other property. Each Owner further acknowledges that any rights acquired do not include the 

preservation of any view and further consents to such obstruction and/or impairment No 

representations or warranties of any kind, expressed or implied, have been given by 

Declarant, or its officers, employees, partners, subsidiaries, affiliated companies, or 

directors and agents of any of them in connection with the preservation of views and each 

Owner and/or the Maintenance Corporation agree to hold Declarant, and all such officers, 

employees, partners, subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and directors and agents of any of 

them free liability from such damages, costs, expenses or charges incurred in connection 

therewith, such as, but not limited to, attorney's fees and court costs and costs rising from 

any changes, obstruction or impairment of view from such Owner's Residence. 

 

N.   Post Tension Slabs.  

 

Building structures within the Covered Property may have been constructed using post tension 

concrete slabs (defined to mean concrete slabs that contain a grid of steel cables under high tension). 

Each Owner, by acceptance of a deed to his/her Condominium could damage the integrity of such 

post tension slabs and could cause serious personal injury or property damage. Each Owner and/or the 

Maintenance Corporation agree to hold Declarant and all partners, subsidiaries and affiliated 

companies of Declarant and all of the officers, employees, directors and agents of any of them. free of 

liability from such damages, costs, expenses or charges incurred in connection herewith, such as but 

not limited to, attorney's fees and court costs and costs incurred by reason of injury to property 

or injury to persons caused by any modification or alteration of such post tension slabs. 

 

O.   Right to Adopt Additional Architectural Standards  

 

The Architectural Committee may from time to time, adopt and promulgate additional Architectural 

Standards to be administered through the Architectural Committee as it deems appropriate and are not 

in conflict with the SAMLARC Declaration or the standards and rules and regulations established 

thereto. Copies of such additional Architectural Standards, together with any rules or regulations 

adopted and promulgated by the Board of Directors and/or the Architectural Committee, shall be on 

file at the office of Merit Property Management 
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GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
1.   Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation Architectural approval does not constitute waiver 

of any requirements required by applicable governmental agencies. Architectural approval of 

plans does not constitute acceptance of any technical or engineering specifications, and Tierra 

Montanosa Maintenance Corporation assumes no responsibility for such. The function of the 

Architectural Committee is to review submittals as to aesthetics. All technical and engineering 

matters are the responsibility of the Condominium Owner. 

 

2.   Building permits may be required for certain improvements from the County of Orange The 

Applicant shall obtain Committee approval of exterior improvements requiring a building 

permit prior to requesting such a permit from the County. 

 

3.   An oversight of a Covenant, Condition or Restriction, or a Committee policy does not 

constitute waiver of that rule and therefore, must be corrected upon notice. 

 

4.   Orange County ordinances require Owners to maintain correct grades of lots so that water 

drainage does not flow into adjoining properties or does not prevent off flow from same 

Approved plans are not to be considered authorization to change the drainage plan as installed 

by the developer and approved by the County of Orange. 

 

5.   Access for equipment used in construction must be through your property only. Access over 

Common Area or Common Facilities will not be permitted without prior approval from the 

Architectural Committee. 

 

6.   Streets may not be obstructed with objects and building materials that are hazardous to 

pedestrians, vehicles, etc. Items such as, but not limited to, dumpsters, sand and building 

materials may not be stored on streets, sidewalks or Common Property. Building materials 

may be kept within an enclosed parking space temporarily during construction which has been 

previously approved by the Architectural Committee. 

 

7.   Any damage to Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation Property will be replaced or 

repaired by a Tierra Montanosa subcontractor. All applicable charges for restoration will be 

charged back to the Owner by Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation and is due and 

payable within 30 days from notification or assessment of penalties. 

 

8.   Approval of plans is not authorization to proceed with Improvements on any property other 

than the Unit owned by the applicant 
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VARIANCE 

 

 
The Board may authorize variances from compliance with the architectural controls set forth in the 

Declaration when circumstances such as topography, natural obstructions, hardship, aesthetic, or 

environmental consideration may require; provided, however, that no variance from the use 

restrictions contained in the Article entitled "Use Restrictions" of the Declaration may be granted. 

Written evidence of such variance must be delivered to such Owner and a copy of the resolution of 

the Board authorizing such variance must be retained in the permanent records of the Association. 

If such variances are granted, no violation of the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall 

have occurred. The granting of such variance shall not operate to waive any of the terms and 

provisions of the Association Management Documents for any purpose except as to the particular 

Residence and particular provision of the Article covered by the variance, nor shall it affect in any 

way the Owner's obligation to comply with all governmental laws and regulations affecting his/her 

use of his/her Residence including, but not limited to, zoning ordinances and lot setback lines or 

requirements imposed by any governmental or municipal authority. 
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EXHIBIT A 

 

HOME IMPROVEMENT FORM 

 
Tierra Montanosa Maintenance Corporation 

c/o Merit Property Management                                    UNIT # _________________ 
1 Polaris Way  

Aliso Viejo, CA  92656                                                                 TRACT _________________ 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE 

 

X __________________________________________________  

HOMEOWNER'S SIGNATURE 

 

Name _______________________________________________ Home Phone _______________  

 

Work Phone _________________________________________  

 

Address _____________________________________________  Tierra Montanosa Maintenance 

Corporation 

 

PROJECTS BEING SUBMITTED: (Please check appropriate box) 

 

Start_____/_____/_____   / Finish_____ /_____ /_____ / 
 

___AIR CONDITIONER                                   ___PAINTING 

___LANDSCAPING                                    ___PLAYHOUSE 

___DRAINS (IF ALTERING EXISTING GRADE)                     ___SPA AND EQUIP. 

___GUTTERS 

___FENCE(S) OR 

___WALLS 

___PATIO 

___PATIO COVER 

___TREES 

___OTHER   
 
PLEASE FILL IN DETAILS BELOW IF NOT SHOWN ON PLANS: _____________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 

ARE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON PLANS?  ____________________________  

NAMES OF PLANTS  ___________________________________________________________  

TYPE OF MATERIALS USED ____________________________________________________  

TYPE OF WOOD SURFACES  ____________________________________________________  

COLOR SCHEME  ______________________________________________________________  

IMPACTED NEIGHBOR STATEMENT ATTACHED? ________________________________  

THREE COPIES ATTACHED?  ___________________________________________________  
 

NOTE: Plans that are approved are not to be considered authorization to change the drainage plan as installed by the 

developer and approved by the County of Orange. The review is intended to consider aesthetic appearance of the 

drains, pipes and coring and other applicable aspects of drainage. 
 

Owner may also need to acquire approval from the County of Orange for permission to encroach within County 

Easement. 

      ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE 
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NEIGHBOR NOTIFICATION 

 

 

It is the intent of the Architectural Committee to consult neighbors on any Improvements which 

may impact their use and enjoyment of their property. Neighbor approval or disapproval of a 

particular Improvement shall only be advisory and shall not be binding in any way on the 

Architectural Committee's decision. 

 

1. Definitions: Facing Neighbor, Adjacent Neighbor, and Impacted Neighbor. 

 

Facing Neighbor: Means the three (3) Units most directly across the street 

 

Adjacent Neighbor: Means all Units with adjoining property lines to the unit in question. 

 

Impacted Neighbor: Means all Units in the immediate surrounding area which would be 

affected by the construction of any Improvement 

 

2. Improvements Requiring Notification: 

 

Any exterior Improvements that may impact the neighbors in the community. 

 

3. Statement: 

 

The Facing. Adjacent and Impacted Neighbor Statement (Exhibit "B") must be provided to 

the Architectural Committee to verify the neighbors have been notified about the proposed 

Improvements. 
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EXHIBIT B 

 

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

FACING, ADJACENT AND IMPACTED NEIGHBOR STATEMENT 
 

 

The attached plans were made available to the following neighbors for review: 

 

FACING NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name    Address   Unit#   Signature 

 

FACING NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name    Address   Unit#   Signature 

 

FACING NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name    Address   Unit#   Signature 

 

ADJACENT NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name   Address   Unit#   Signature 

 

ADJACENT NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name   Address   Unit#   Signature 

 

IMPACTED NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name                 Address           Unit#        Signature 

 

IMPACTED NEIGHBOR: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name                    Address             Unit#           Signature 

 
The neighbors have seen the plans I am submitting for Architectural Committee approval (see 

above verification). I understand neighbor objections do not in themselves cause denial. 

However, the Architectural Committee will contact the neighbors to determine their objections and 

their appropriateness, if necessary. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

Name _______________________________________________ Date ______________________  

 

Address _______________________________________________________________________  
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EXHIBIT C 

 

TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 

 

Notice is hereby given that: 

 

The undersigned is the owner(s) of the property located at 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 (Street & Number) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 (City) 

 

The work of Improvement on the described property was COMPLETED ON THE 

 

_______________ Day of_________, 20 ______ in accordance with the 

 

Architectural Committee's written approval of the above owner's plans and submitted package. 

 

Signature of Owner  _______________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________ 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE 

 

 
I.     Discovery of Violation 

 

A.  Any violation that is an alleged violation of the Management Documents and the Rules 

and Regulations of the Association will be processed according to the procedures 

outlined herein. 

 

B.   In the event one or more Members of the Association or Board of Directors file a 

Violation Report (Exhibit "D") the Board would act as follows: 

 

1.   Send a letter to the Owner stating the alleged violation and date needed to cure said 

violation. 

 

2.   Upon expiration of the cure date, if the violation still exists, a second letter will be 

sent stating that the failure to abide by Association Rules and Regulations has 

imposed a hardship on the Association and the Owner will be asked to attend a 

hearing with the Board of Directors. 

 

3.   The homeowner will be notified as to the decision rendered by the Board as a result 

of the hearing. If the homeowner is found to be in violation of the Corporation's 

documents, the Board will either a) seek remedy by use of the legal system, b) 

apply monetary fines to the homeowner's assessment billing, c) suspend the 

homeowner's right to use any recreational facilities, d) suspend voting privileges, 

e) record a notice of noncompliance encumbering the Unit. f) choose to correct (or 

cause to be corrected) the violation and assess the owner for reimbursement of 

costs, or g) a combination thereof. 

 

4.   If the decision is to pursue a monetary fine system, the Tierra Montanosa 

Maintenance Corporation Fine Schedule will apply. 

 

NOTE:      A violation is defined as an act in conflict with the CC&R's, By-Laws, Rules and 

  Regulations and Architectural Guidelines of the Corporation. 
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EXHIBIT D 

 

TIERRA MONTANOSA  MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

RULES AND VIOLATION REPORT 

 

DATE: _____________ 

 

I. PERSON MAKING REPORT:            NAME:________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ____________________________ 

PHONE NUMBER:______________________ 

 

II. DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION (fill in as completely as possible) 

DATE: ___________________ TIME: ___________ LOCATION:___________________ 

III. DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATOR: 

NAME: ___________________________________ PHONE NO.: ___________________ 

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONAL WITNESSES: 

NAME: __________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________ 

NAME: __________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________ 

 

V. ACTION TAKEN BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

DATE:__________________ 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ACTION: ________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SIGNATURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: _______________________________ 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA MAINTENANCE CORPORATION 

 

FINE SCHEDULE 

 

 

1.   A letter will be sent to the homeowner stating the alleged violation. 

 

2.   A second letter will be sent to the homeowner stating the alleged violation continues and this 

letter will request the homeowner appear before the Board of Directors. 

 

3.   If the result of the hearing is a monetary fine. a fine of $50 will be applied to the Owner's 

account. 

 

4.   If the violation continues past the hearing and first fine stage, additional hearings will be 

scheduled with the homeowner and the fines may be doubled with each hearing. Any fines 

not paid may result in legal action in accordance with California law. 

 

5.   The Board may determine to use the legal system or cause correction of the violation to 

effect a 

cure and the Owner may be responsible for legal fees and or reimbursement of costs to the 

Corporation. 

 

NOTE:   Should a violation occur which imposes a financial obligation of the Corporation, then 

the party responsible for said violation shall reimburse, by way of a Penalty 

Assessment, 

the Corporation for this financial obligation. If, for example, a party damages a fence, 

tree or any other common property, repair and replacement costs will be charged to that 

party. 
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TIERRA MONTANOSA HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 

PROCEDURE FOR HOMEOWNER HEARING 

Procedure: 

1. Statement of violation by acting chairperson. 

2. Violator's statement and presentation of oral or written evidence. 

3. Review of CC&R requirements. Bylaws, and Rules and Regulations of the Association. 

4. Discussion and questioning of the violator by the Board members. 

5. Questions and final statement by alleged violator. 

6. Board ruling. 

7. Enforcement procedures as applicable. 

8. Adjournment. 

 

DOCUMENTATION: 

 

Name of Violator: ______________________________ Phone Number: _________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________________________ 

Nature of Violation: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Board Ruling: ________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Additional Comments: _________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 
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THE MATERIAL CONTAINED WITHIN THIS PACKET IS NOT INTENDED TO BE 

 

SUBSTITUTED FOR THE SERVICES OF AN ATTORNEY. THE LAW AND ITS 

 

INTERPRETATION ARE CONSTANTLY CHANGING. 

 

PLEASE CONSULT YOUR PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR REGARDING YOUR 

 

INVOLVEMENT IN A CORPORATION. 
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